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COMPANY PROFILE AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

1

China Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CRMicro” or the “Company”,
formerly named as CSMC Technologies Corporation (“CSMC”)) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in August 2004 (Stock Code 0597).

Pioneering the open foundry business model in China since 1997, the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “We”") provide Integrated
Circuits (“IC”) and power discrete processes manufacturing services
for fabless design houses and integrated device manufacturers (IDMs).
Our fabs are located in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province and Beijing with a total
manufacturing capacity of approximately 80,000 6-inch wafers per month
(“wpm?”), which is believed to be the largest 6-inch open foundry operation

in terms of production capacity in mainland China.

In December 2007, China Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic”) and
the Company jointly announced the amalgamation of both companies’
semiconductor businesses under the Group. The amalgamation was
approved by the shareholders of both companies on 13 February, 2008
and completed on 5 March 2008, which will enable the Group to become
one of the largest local players in the China semiconductor industry with
manufacturing and service capabilities covering open foundry service
as well as IC testing and packaging services, discrete device
manufacture, and IC design. Each operation of the semiconductor
business will remain distinct from one another and operate independently.
The Company has been renamed as China Resources Microelectronics

Limited with effective from 14 February, 2008

We believe that the amalgamation will broaden and strengthen the
operating base of the Group and will further enhance our leading position
as one of the largest and most profitable operators in the China
semiconductor industry, and hence, will deliver greater values to our

customers and shareholders.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

English Name

Chinese Name

Stock Code

Chairman

Vice Chairman

President

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

China Resources Microelectronics

Limited (Formerly named as CSMC

Technologies Corporation)

LHRETFERAA
(BB LR R ERAR)

597

SONG Lin

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Peter CHEN Cheng-yu
(resigned on 20 March 2008)

Peter CHEN Cheng-yu

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

ZHU Jinkun

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Elvis DENG Mao-song
(resigned on 20 March 2008)

WANG Guoping

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Frank LAI Ni Hium
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Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

SONG Lin
(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Peter CHEN Cheng-yu

Elvis DENG Mao-song

(appointed on 1 July 2007, resigned on
20 March 2008)

Robert LEE Naii
(resigned on 1 July 2007)

WANG Guoping

(formerly a Non-Executive Director, re-
designated as an Executive Director on
20 March 2008)

Frank LAI Ni Hium

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

ZHU Jinkun

WANG Guoping

(re-designated as an Executive Director
on 20 March 2008)

Ken ONG Thiam Kin

(resigned on 20 March 2008)

YU Yu
(resigned on 20 March 2008)

CHEN Nan-xiang
(resigned on 20 March 2008)

JIANG Wei
(appointed on 20 March 2008)

LI Fuzuo
(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Du Wenmin
(appointed on 20 March 2008)
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Independent Non-Executive ~ Kum Loon OON BT B

Directors Mark HSUE Chi Nan £= FTE
(resigned on 20 March 2008) (RZEENFE=A=+H
BEE)
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze YBEMA
KO Ping Keung SE L
(appointed on 20 March 2008) (R=ZZEZENF=ZA=T+H
BEE)
Audit Committee Kum Loon OON ENVEE® RATHE
(Chairperson) (£®)
YU Yu AT
(resigned on 20 March 2008) (RZBEENF=ZA=Z+H
BEE)
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze YBEMA
KO Ping Keung L
(appointed on 20 March 2008) (RZZEENF=ZA=+H
BET)
Remuneration Committee Ken ONG Thiam Kin FMEE®E ITAR
(Chairperson, resigned on 20 March (XfE - RZFTZENF=HA
2008) Z T HEHE)
Mark HSUE Chi Nan FFEr
(resigned on 20 March 2008) (RZEENFE=A=+H
BEE)
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze YBEMA
(Chairperson, appointed on (XfE - RZFTZENF=HA
20 March 2008) —THEZMHE)
Frank LAI Ni Hium RO 1
(appointed on 20 March 2008) (RZEENF=A=+H
EZ 1)
Kum Loon OON heE
(appointed on 20 March 2008) (RZEENF=A=+H
EZ1T)
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Nomination Committee

Company Secretary and

Qualified Accountant

Auditors

Legal Advisor

Registered Office

Principal Place of Business

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

Ralph Sytze YBEMA
(Chairperson)

Kum Loon OON

Mark HSUE Chi Nan
(resigned on 20 March 2008)

KO Ping Keung
(appointed on 20 March 2008)

CHEN Nan-xiang
(resigned on 20 March 2008)

Peter CHEN Cheng-yu

WANG Guoping
(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Frank LAI Ni Hium

Certified Practising Accountant

(Australia)

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Richards Butler

in association with Reed Smith LLP

Scotia Center, P.O. Box 2804
George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

British West Indies

No. 14 Liangxi Road
Wauxi, Jiangsu
214061

China
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Place of Business in
Hong Kong Registered
under Part Xl of the

Companies Ordinance

Share Registrar and Transfer

Office in Hong Kong

Website Address

Rm. 510, 5/F,, IC Development Centre
No. 6, Science Park West Avenue
Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin

N.T., Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Rooms 1806-1807

18th Floor,

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

www.csmc.com.cn
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Revenue

Total earnings before interest
expense, taxation,
depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”)

Depreciation and amortization

Finance costs

Profit before income tax

Taxation

Profit for the year
(“Net profit”)

As at 31 December
Total assets

Total equity

Bank balances and cash

Borrowings

Earnings per share
Basic (US cent)
Diluted (US cent)

Net assets per share (US cent)

Ratios (Note 1)

Gross margin (%)
Operating profit margin (%)
Net profit margin (%)
Current ratio (times)

Quick ratio (times)

Net debt to equity (%)

WA
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2007
US$’000
—FTtF
FXr

142,563

43,125

(22,030)
(3,557)
17,538
(4,064)

13,474

310,442
197,526
20,712
58,645

0.49
0.49

7.21

26.86
14.80
9.45
0.79
0.49
19.20

2006
US$'000
ZTTRF

=

TETT

114,302

34,281
(23,263)
(3,531)
7,487
(1,121)

6,366

253,280
171,135
21,101
42,785

0.24
0.23

6.28

23.56
9.34
5.57
1.05
0.64

12.67

Year-on-year
change
& EF

S

24.7%

25.8%
(5.3%)
0.7%
134.2%
262.5%

111.7%

22.6%
15.4%
(1.8%)
37.1%

105.5%
111.6%

14.8%

14.0%
58.4%
69.7%

(24.9%)

(23.6%)
51.5%



Note 1 T .
Net assets per share = Shareholders’ equity / number of shares issued BEREEFE = KRE#EZ MNetHBE 5
as at the end of the accounting period REMNDETRHEE »
5
Gross profit margin = Gross profit / revenue x 100% B EF = EFWE < 100% 3
9}
T
Operating profitmargin =  Operating profit / revenue x 100% BECEIET = SEEBEFIES X 100% 2
@)
sy ase S Z
Net profit margin = Profit after tax / revenue x 100% B R AR = BREBEEF, Wz < 100% <
o
Current ratio = Current assets / current liabilities TRE L % - RBEE/TBHEE
Quick ratio = (Current assets — inventories) / current liabilities ~ #R 8f bt & = (RBEE-GBE) "
BE
Net debt to equity = (Total debts less bank balances and cash) /total ~ fEEEEZELE= (EBEEAHERRTESH LB
equity x 100% &) HEEREEE X 100%

TETEFFERE  ANNUAL REPORT 2007 8
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2007 2006

(Note1)
GEA

2005 2004 2003

“EELE —TERF —TERF —TENF —TET=F

US$000 US$'000

FER FET
Consolidated income melER
statement
Revenue ON 142,563 114,302
EBITDA EBITDA 43,125 34,281
Profit (loss) for the year FAmF (EE) 13,474 6,366
Operating cash inflow LB FRA 40,284 31,430

US$000  US$000  US$000
TET FET TET
(Restated)
(E%))

78,099 79,860 42,077
17,244 27,457 14,391
(6,842) 10,171 4,015
18,032 19,967 9,034

As at 31 December

I

2007 2006

+=—A=+—8”
2005 2004 2003

—®RLE ~TTAF —TTOF ~TIMF —TI=

US$000 US$'000

TEx  TEx
Consolidated balance sheet “ZA&EEESEXR
Non-current assets ERBEE 229,608 183,564
Current assets mBNVEE 80,834 69,716
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 10,384 15,488
Current liabilities mEaE 102,532 66,657
Total equity - Ea L 197,526 171,135
Note: BiEE -
1. The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 1.

2004 was restated following the adoption of new HKFRS which are
effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January
2005.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

US$000  US$000  US$'000
FE7 FET FE7
(Restated)
(&751)

161,296 140,069 83,792
62,854 59,439 53,223

9,230 — —
57,916 39,095 41,788
157,004 160,413 95,227

RE-SEMEL_A=+—ALEE
& WS RINR AT BB A 15 R 5 2
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Historical Milestones E 2 #
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7]

L

Amalgamation of China Resources group's =z
semiconductor business ,9
ALHENEELEBES 0
—

=

-

* BCDMOS development and production 6

e Fab 1 acquired the certificate of T

Sony Green Partner @)

= . =

o 3XFBCDMOSH: i 4 Z= 2]

o BE-BERBHEBHRS T

Fab 1 was TS16949 and RoHS certified

Fab 3 was ISO9001 certified

CR Logic became the controlling shareholder
Transform to an analog foundry

&8 (B — FUE TS 16949 X ROHSHHE
52 [H] = BU#ISO9001 24
RIS & (a5l

e Cooperated with IMECAS to set up operation
in Beijing
e Launched 0.35pm process

e DMOS technology mass production

o BRI IAE TS (R AR s IR
o IRFB0.35HURBATAE

o IRADMOSK T IESEE
Listed on the main board of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

BB PTER LT

e Acquired 0.35um 6-inch equipment line

from Agere & Chartered
* Strategic partnership with Chartered
e Completed US$52.2M private placement

o [AAgerefIFFEF I ABIE0.35H0K
EERSE

o EEERYERBENE
. SFR520BETALE

Fab 1 was 1ISO14001 and OHSAS18001 certified
(Bl — & 1S014001 &2 OHSAS 18001 :RE

Complete transition from 5-inch to 6-inch

SERK BT M6 T EE &

Operating breakeven after 15 months

#1518 AR W T &

Leased 5-inch and 6-inch wafer foundry
production facilities from China Huajing Group
MEEEREEAT
TARSHT R6HE T REILER

Founded by Dr. Peter Chen
HRIEFE LAl

'l
A

T L EF E RS  ANNUALREPORT2007 10



CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
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Dear Shareholders,

Being the first and the largest 6-inch open foundry in China, the Group
continues to execute its rapid transition into mainland China and global
analog/power management markets. The Chinese analog market alone
demonstrated a 29.1% growth rate in 2007 as compared with a 4.4%
worldwide market growth rate in terms of revenue. In 2007, the Group
demonstrated a record revenue and profitability due to our strategic
analog positioning, resulting in the most profitable year in the history of

the Company.

| am proud to report that the Group recorded a revenue of US$142.56
million for the financial year 2007, representing a 24.7% growth as
compared with US$114.30 million for the financial year 2006, of which,
analog semiconductor products accounted for approximately 43.8% of
the annual revenue and exceeded 50% in the fourth quarter of 2007.
Derived from the strong performance of analog semiconductor products,
the Group booked a historical record net profit of US$13.47 million, which
doubled the net profit of over US$6.37 million in 2006. We are confident
that the analog products will account for a higher percentage of our
future revenue. Looking ahead, our incremental 8-inch capacity
expansion in 2008 will provide incremental technology and production
platforms to strengthen our leading position in the domestic and overseas

analog market.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7
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The Company and China Resources Logic have completed the
amalgamation of the semiconductor businesses of both companies into
CRMicro. After amalgamation, the Company will be one of the top five
semiconductor producers in mainland China. All the existing open
foundry service businesses will be injected into a new wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in a manner so that open foundry service
and other semiconductor business will remain distinct from one another
and operated independently. Other non-foundry businesses include IC
design, testing and packaging services, and discrete device
manufacturing. The foundry business will not only be provided with more
stable orders from our upstream IC design and discrete device
manufacturing businesses, but also be better facilitated and supported
by the downstream IC testing and packaging business. With the upstream
and downstream synergy arising from the amalgamation, the Group will
able to offer Turnkey service to customers, which will be valuable for the
Group in maintaining its relationship with customers. Through the
amalgamation, the Group will distinguish itself from the other
semiconductor companies in China in terms of product portfolio as well
as growth environment. The amalgamation will bring much greater
flexibility in deploying existing resources and discretionary cash flows.
We are optimistic that the amalgamation will broaden and strengthen
the operating base of the Company and will further enhance our leading
position as one of the largest domestic operators in the China

semiconductor industry.

Finally, on behalf of the Company, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank all of our shareholders, business partners and our employees for

your support and confidence with us.

}7%/-« 6/\/—»

Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2008
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BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE YEAR

Overview

In 2007, the Group has benefited from its transition to analog foundry
with the continual efforts on process technology mix evolution and
capacity expansion. The Group’s consolidated revenue and the net profit
for the financial year 2007 hit the new historical heights. The consolidated
revenue increased by 24.7% to US$142.56 million in 2007 from
US$114.30 million in 2006. The Group recorded a net profit of US$13.47
million, representing an increase of 111.7% as compared with US$6.37
million in 2006. EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2007 was
US$43.13 million, representing an increase of 25.8% from US$34.28
million as compared to the prior year. In 2007, the average capacity
utilization rate of the Group was up to 87% as well as the average selling
price (the “ASP”) has increased to US$189 per wafer in 2007 from US$175
per wafer in 2006.

Expansion of Business

The Group continues to maintain a high portfolio of the turnover from
China market as the growth of China analog IC market is outpacing the
worldwide market. Accordingly, the Group recorded over US$100 million
revenue from the mainland China market, representing 71.1% of the total
revenue of the Group in 2007 and represents an increase of 30.9% as
compared to US$77.41 million in 2006. The Group’s business from the
overseas market also increased by 11.7% to US$41.21 million in 2007

due to the growth in overseas market demand in 2007.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7
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BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE YEAR (Cont'd)

Expansion of Business (Cont'd)

The following table shows the geographical breakdown of the Group’s

revenue for the five years ended 31 December 2007:

FEEXEKLEE @
HEREK @

TREVNRHWESTAEBEHE_TT+
FHZA=t—BIERAEFENRKRA:

SN
pi

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(US$’000) % (US$000) % (US$'000) % (US$000) % (US$000) %
(F%7m) (F%7) (=) (=) (=)
The mainland
China HERE 101,350 711 77413 67.7 52982 678 46854 586 32,289 76.7
Asia, other than  FREIARE
themainland  BASMD
China TtE 25,976 182 21,989 192 1519 195 20,900 26.2 7,596 18.1
United States 11,737 82 10852 95 5,637 7.2 5,571 7.0 2,192 52
Europe B 3,500 25 4,048 36 4,286 55 6,535 8.2 — —
Total it 142,563 1000 114,302 1000 78,099 1000 79,860 1000 42,077 100.0

The Group maintains good business relationship with our key customers.

The Group generated revenue of US$48.13 million from its top five
customers in 2007 as compared with US$48.36 million in 2006. We

adopted a strategy to diversify customer base to avoid over-reliance on

any single customer. The Group's top five customers’ contribution to the
revenue decreased to 33.7% in 2007 from 42.3% in 2006.

FEEEFTERPREFERTOEBHER -
—EEHFAREEREAATFPHKRAS
48138E L MZTEFH|A4,8368
ET - ARBRWNEBEELETFPES T
1t BEBRDERBEMNE—KS - REH
AAEFHBAEBMB -_TEFHN
423% THRE_ZT+FMI37% °
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CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE YEAR (Cont'd)

Production Capacity and Capacity Utilization Rate

By the end of 2007, the Group’s production capacity reached 79,400
wpm, whereas the average capacity utilization achieved 87% in 2007
as compared to 86% in 2006.

Technology Migration

The Group is transforming to be a leading analog foundry in China to
focus on and benefit from the rapidly increasing demand in China analog
IC market. Revenue contributions from analog ICs increased to 43.8%
in 2007 from 33.1% in 2006.

The table below shows the Group’s revenue by process mix for the five
years ended 31 December 2007:

EKERE e

ERRERERAR

HE-_ZTZLHFK AEENEREESHA
79,400 ®E - —EZELFFHERGH
RE8T%  M_ZTZNFAAE86% °

Bt E®
AEEFEAURATBEERREET 2 &
M% ABET N BIR R E
FRerRRER - REREKENRT
%ﬁ“ﬁﬂﬁz}\ﬁfiﬁmf =T NFR33.1 %1
ME_FTZ+F#H43.8% °

TEREVEHEZ_ZZLF+-_A=1+—H
LFhEFEEIZ2ES ST AREEHK
A

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(US$'000) % (US$000) % (US$000) % (US$000) % (US$:000) %

(Fx7) (F%7m) (F%7m) (F%7m) (F%7m)
Logic i 72,202 50.7 69,611 610 51,725 66.2 63438 794 38123 90.6
Analog fEk 62,515 438 37913 33.1 21,995 282 13,082 16.4 2,506 6.0
Others Hith 7,846 55 6,778 59 4379 56 3,340 42 1,448 34
Total @t 142,563 100.0 114,302 1000 78,099 1000 79,860 1000 42077 100.0

In addition to the ongoing capacity expansion and improvement on the
contribution from analog ICs, the Group continuously enhances its
process technology by geometry. Revenue contributions from 0.5 micron
and the more advanced process technologies increased to US$65.86
million or 46.2% in 2007 from US$48.55 million or 42.5% in 2006. The
Group is also working towards expanding its process technology offering
to include 0.35 to 0.18 micron with the technology partner for Fab 2
when those process technologies come on stream.

EMUBTERA T

BRIEMETHEREERRERSBERITZE
BOERREAN  AEBRBENETIRA
HTERM - BEOSMKEBRLETE
R A B ZZEZE/NFM4,8558 %7
(B(h42.5%) E - TTHFH65868 %
TC(51h46.2%) « NREBE N IEH ZHF K
BB HAIE - 0352018 K TE
BTG A 2 T 9% 2 T IR 4R AR 4B A BRI 15
(G



BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE YEAR (Cont'd)

Technology Migration (Cont'd)

The table below shows the Group’s revenue by geometry for the five

years ended 31 December 2007:

G-inch
>=1.0micron
0.6 - 0.8 micron
0.5 micron
0.35-0.4 micron

Subtotal
DMOS
Others

Total

ES)
>=1.0 %
0608k
0580k
03504 ok

ot
DMOS
£

¥EEEe

RirE% (5

TREVNREROMOAEEER

E2-ZET

tF+ A=+ —BHIEABEFENRA :

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Uss000) % (USS000) % (US$000) % (US$000) % (US$000) %
(F£7) (F£7) (F£7) (F£7) (F£7)

4,017 168 2850 50 2130 73 030 B4 1823 133
33,367 B4 2695 86 1T B0 B B2 14207 18
55,034 B B 34 091 68 880 11 149 36
10830 76 1269 11 1120 e 18347 B0 66 159
123248 84 104073 911 Tided 915 76459 %7 4069 %6
11,469 80 3451 00 2% 29 6 01 - -
7806 56 6778 59 4379 56 330 42 148 34
142563 1000 114302 1000 7809 1000 79860 1000 42007 1000
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CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE YEAR (Cont'd)

Employees

The management believes that the Group’s employees are its greatest
assets. The Group had 2,119 employees as at 31 December 2007,
representing an increase of 299 employees as compared to 1,820 at the
end of 2006. The Group has maintained a good working relationship

with its employees over the year.

In the highly competitive foundry business, strong human resources are
essential for continuous growth. The management successfully leverage
on the strengths of both local Chinese employees and international
expertise. The Group also prides itself for its track record of recruiting
and developing local managerial, technical, and operating personnel.
Currently approximately 98% of the Group’s staff are citizens of the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC"), including the majority of its
managers. As at 31 December 2007, about 55% of the Group’s

employees hold college or graduate degrees.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
Employer’s pension cost charged to the consolidated income statement
was US$2.16 million in 2007, compared with US$1.31 million in 2006.

EMUBTERA T

BE
ERERE TRENEERREENE
E -BE_TTLHF+_A=+—HB &

EBARE?2,119%  B_ZEZEFEH
1,820% BB AN299A « BE—F » K&
EEEEMHE RITEE -

mBERTEBHBRFIET R - BAOHA
NERBRHEERMLEFN - BEEEKD
WA AREAREES RERESNED -
AEETHEBRERERAMHERE &
MikEESETMRBERIER - REER
RFA198% M B T AT EARLME ([H
BEDEAAL @ BREKBIELIE - R
ET+F+_A=1+—H  FTEEH55%
MEEBHEARNZBRINLHERE -

REBEFBHIE  AHEREBEENAR
HFA BB S RBFTENWELHER - =
ZELF  REARERFNRHNEER
REKARB2168FET  M_TZ R FAI
BI3NEET °



OPERATING RESULTS

The following table shows certain information relating to Group's results
of operations for the two years ended 31 December 2007, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements of the same period:

Consolidated income statements

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Other income
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Research and

development expenses

Other operating expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company
Dividend declared and paid

Earnings per share
- basic (US cent)

— diluted (US cent)

Operating Data
Depreciation and amortization
Capital expenditure

Wafer sales
(units)

ASP (US$)
(Wafer sales/
quantity of wafer sold)

A
HERA
=i
BB ¢
EAIA
KR WAK
AT
MR
IR
A
BT
e
BB
BB
ARABAHEA
A5 S R
BERREHRE
SRET)
—2K (i)
-8 (i)
SEBS
78 R
ARHX
SEHEHE
(3D

FHEE (1)
(mEIHER/
EEREHE)

e
REXRE

TREVNEFEAEEBRE_TTLF+ -
A=t —BLEMEFENEERENET
B o RFEM M AR BRENRS
MIEHE -

e W R

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLHFE

2007 2006 Year-on-year

Rate

EEBHE
(US$’000) %  (US$'000) % %

(F=7T) (F%71)

142,563 100.0 114,302 100.0 24.7%
(104,270) (73.1) (87,368) (76.4) 19.3%
38,293 26.9 26,934 23.6 42.2%

4,761 3.3 4,965 4.2 (4.1%)

(2,815) (2.0) (3,162) (2.8) (11.0%)

(13,530) (9.5) (14,108) (12.3) (4.1%)
(4,908) (3.4) (3,100) (2.7) 58.3%
(706) (0.5) (511) (0.4) 38.1%
21,095 14.8 10,679 9.6 97.5%
(3,557) (2.4) (3,531) (3.0) 0.7%
17,538 12.4 7,487 6.6 134.2%
(4,064) (2.9) (1,121) (1.0) 262.5%
13,474 9.5 6,366 5.6 111.7%
0.49 0.24 104.2%
0.49 0.23 113.0%

22,030 23,263 (5.3%)
56,258 32,406 73.6%
735,500 615,100 19.6%

189 175 8.0%
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OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Revenue

During the financial year under review, the Group’s revenue was mainly
contributed from wafer fabrication. The Group’s consolidated revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2007 amounted to US$142.56 million,
representing an increase of 24.7% compared with US$114.30 million in
2006. This increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to the increase
in sales volume of wafers shipped by 19.6% to 735,500 wafers in 2007
from 615,100 wafers in 2006. The increase in ASP by 8.0% from US$175
in 2006 to US$189 in 2007, which resulted from the change in process
technology mix to more analog products, also contributed to the revenue

increase.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists principally of:
—  depreciation;

— direct materials, mainly raw wafers, and indirect materials such as

test wafers, photo masks, chemicals and photo resist;

— manufacturing overhead, including utilities, spare parts, repair and

maintenance, rent, and indirect labor; and

— direct labor, including salaries for employees directly involved in

manufacturing activities.

Cost of sales increased by 19.3% to US$104.27 million in 2007 from
US$87.37 million in 2006. The increase in cost of sales in the year was

primarily due to the increase in the volume of wafers sold.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

TR LY e g
REHEE @
WA

REBMBFEERN  AEBERAFERE
mERE AEEBIL-_TTLF+ A
=T —HIEFENGEERAR14,2568 3%
T =T RFEMI4308ETTIER
24.7% ° REBRABMEZHARE R
BEERZ-ZTETNFM615,100FEMT
19.6% 2 —ZFE - F#)735,500F FTE - i
REXTEFEMES  BNESERERE
m EFHEBTE _TEFMI175%
LM T8.0%E T LFMI189FETT
BERUWA LT o

HERATZEIE -
- WE:

- HEDH IE2EARENIRE-
REEYE - mAS&E - KE
EEmEAAE

- HEMERER BRHN - THEH
wekrEd HehBEESI R

- HEBT BRERSHEJELD
MNEEF T

HER AR —TTNFHS, 7378 F T
I19.3%E—ZTZHFM10,4278FTT
REHEKRAENEZRELREHESH
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont'd)

Gross profit

Gross profit increased by 42.2% to US$38.29 million in 2007 from
US$26.93 million in 20086, of which, increases in ASP of 8.0% contributed
approximately US$8.61 million. The higher utilization rate also contributed
to more gross profit for dilution impact on the fixed costs. As a result, the
gross margin increased to 26.9% in 2007 from 23.6% in 2006.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of
intangible assets included in cost of sales, selling and distribution costs,
administrative expenses and research and development expenses are
as follows:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets A ER#E
Amortization of prepaid lease payments on TEAS -t FA
land use rights itk i

Taxation

The details of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement
for the two years ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

The tax charge comprises: AR 81E -
Current taxation BN EAR 18

Hong Kong BB

PRC Enterprise Income Tax I EFTISH
Deferred taxation EIETRIE

W% - BERREOITE

REEE W

E 7

EFMBE-_TTNFWN2,6938 ELIE M
A22%E =TT HFM3,8298% L EF
”?fﬂ%{igiigﬁ8.0%,%’92%$%lmX861%
EL o FAXEABEERTERAE  TSE
MEFA - Bt - BEEFNEH-_ZTTF
M23.6%EE T T+ FM26.9% °

TER#E

FPASHERA ~ SHERD KA  ITHE
RARMRARBAZEEROYE - BEER
BONMENAREBEEMNHEHENT

2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
SFEEm FETT
21,063 22,633
954 630
13 12
|
REBE_ZEE+F+_A=+—HIME
FENGAEKRERMBORIBFBEOT ¢
2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT
91 —
4,041 1,459
(68) (338)
4,064 1,121
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OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2007. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made for the year ended 31 December 2006
as the Group did not generate any assessable profit arising in Hong

Kong during that year.

Profits tax arising in the PRC is calculated based on the applicable tax
rates on assessable profits. Certain subsidiaries operating in the PRC
which are regarded as encouraged technology intensive foreign
investment enterprises with foreign investment in excess of
US$30,000,000 have been granted tax concessions by the tax authorities
and are entitled to PRC Enterprises Income Tax at preferential rate of
15%.

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

financial year ended 31 December 2007.

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on

the following data:

Earnings for the purposes of REst®E
calculating basic and BRERK

BEERTOER

diluted earnings per share

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

EENGHDEBE_TTLF+ A=
TR FEMAFTERTENE17.5%5
B -ARAEERBE_TTRF+ A
=t BULEFEYREETBELEMER
BamAl - MU EBZFENTBNGERE
A

FOFR B E A WO P S A TS 4% FE AR A5 g )3
BMEFHE - FETRHEZENMNBRAR
KEHRIB3,0008 XL H X e B R T &
IR ELE  BURBRAETHER
B I ZH16%M T B EMAEHEER

=

iR B
EETERBIMNBE_ZTLF+ A=
T—HLEFRFENRE -

iR & R
BEAREFERMNERE T BIEG

an

o

2007 2006
US$°000 US$'000
FTXr TXET
13,474 6,366




OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Earnings per share (Cont'd)

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{EstEEREAR

shares for the purposes of calculating Peplok=31:)04

basic earnings per share ('000) g (FRR)
Effect of dilutive potential BB E T Bk

ordinary shares: Sof %

— Equity incentive plan ('000) — & SEREET & (FAR)

— Share Option Scheme ('000) —MExiERT 8 (FAR)

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ Ff{EstE & ENS
shares for the purposes of calculating — Z2F|#) & @A%
diluted earnings per share ('000) EFHE (FR)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group’s sources of liquidity
were mainly derived from the operating activities and bank borrowings,
which amounted to US$40.28 million and US$14.58 million, respectively.
The net cash inflow from operation of US$40.28 million in 2007 represents
an increase of US$8.85 million as compared with US$31.43 million in
2006. Such increase was mainly due to the growth of revenue. The
Group’s cash has principally been applied to the expansion and upgrade

of the production facilities and equipment of US$56.26 million.

Number of ordinary shares

EBEREE
2007 2006
2,731,704 2,701,158
30,822 36,454
5,627 1,099
2,768,153 2,738,711

HE_TT+F+_A=+—HILFE "
AEENRBHESRREERAKLLEED
RIRITEE - 95 A4,0288 % 1,458
BEL R_ZTLFLERESTATFHA
4,028BE TR -_TTNFMI143BET
HENessEETT - ZEEMEFZARRNKA
BRAH - AEENRESFTZEANEE
FE R R BRI E T R TR 515,626 8 %

JC °
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OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Cont'd)

The table below sets forth the cashflow of the Group for the two years

ended 31 December 2007, as well as the cash and cash equivalents at

the end of each of the two years:

Net cash generated

from operating activities
Net cash used

in investing activities
Net cash generated from

(used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash
and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents

at end of year

RERHELRIRERMAFER

RERSBANRDFER

e e g
RERE @

RBEERERRR (&)

TRILAEEBE _TTLF+ A=
T—HALEMEFENRSRERZMESF

BERBEL (BA) WRSFH

ReReFEYRFE

SMEEEEHTE

FNRE MRS FEY

FRAG MRS FEY

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s free cash on hand was US$20.71
million, representing a decrease of US$389,000 or 1.8% compared with
that of 31 December 2006. Among the cash balance, 52.5% and 45.6%

were denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") and US dollars respectively.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

EXRNBEEREEEY :
2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
40,284 31,430
(53,911) (31,384)
12,278 (3,056)
(1,349) (3,010)
960 (667)
21,101 24,778
20,712 21,101
R=FBLFE+=A=+—H AEEF

SELMAARSA207MEET  BK_-Z
TXRFE+-_A=+—HHE 7389,0003%
TLE1.8% c MEEF 2R 525%BAR

M RA5.6% BETT ©



OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Indebtedness

The borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 were as

follows:

Secured bank loans BIIFRITEE

Unsecured bank loans EIIRIRTTEE

Less: Amount due within one year B ORBIBEET
shown under current liabilities —FREHZ R

FRBEET—FE
2H 2 3R

Amount due after one year shown as

non-current liabilities

Among the borrowings there were US$2.80 million short term loan
secured by machineries and equipment with a net book value of US$1.97
million and another US$7.00 million current portion of long-term loan
secured by land use right with a net book value of US$586,000.

The Group receives payments in currencies including RMB, US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars, and it incurs costs and expenses in currencies
including US dollars, RMB, Japanese Yen, Hong Kong dollars and Euros.
The management believes that, considering the working capital position
of the Group, the Group will have sufficient foreign exchange funding to

meet its foreign exchange liabilities as they become due.

B
AEBHZ -_ZTTL+FR _TTEF+ =
A=+—HAmEENT
2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
FTEx F=ET
9,800 15,306
48,854 27,479
58,645 42,785
(58,645) (35,785)
= 7,000

BEEREEPER280E =T - UEREF
@197%%755@1%%& SEEER - ZHh

HI B XA BIEA S8 2 7008 £ L A LABRE
>¥1E586,000%7_Eﬁﬁii1ﬂ1§)ﬂ%{’Eﬁﬁ#ﬁ o

AEBRBMAOFIEAARE - ETRET
REM - ERARERANNAEZT - AR
% BE-BTEBTAEML - BEEM
E ERIXKENLEESNN - ~&%
BB EIINE M BMHINERE -
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OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Capital Expenditures

The Group requires capital to build, expand, upgrade and maintain its
production facilities and equipments. The Group incurred a capital
expenditure of US$56.26 million in 2007, mainly including US$39.17
million spent on the purchase of machinery and equipment for 6-inch
fabs capacity expansion and transition to analog foundry and US$17.09
million spent on construction and facilities for Fab 2, our initial 8-inch
fab.

The Group is cultivating business opportunities with certain technology
partners and endeavors to form strategic partnerships for Fab 2. The
construction of Fab 2 facilities are in progress and expected to be

completed in year 2008.

The Group will continue to implement its prudent capital management

policy and optimize the allocation of its capital resources.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

a) Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group had the following

significant capital commitments:

Capital expenditure in respect of BRI EEYZE
acquisition of property, G E D]
plant and equipment BRMR

Authorised but not contracted for B BB R4

Contracted but not provided for EETHBERE

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

RERE @
EARRAX

AEBREZERUER  #EX - BARKSE
EEERBREE R_TT+F K%
ErEAHYT A5,6268F T - HH3,917
BEXETARRETHONERLERT RME
HaBEEImELmMESERIRE R
1,7098 X TR M (REBE % —K8&E
TR B R R o

AEBEFERE TRIMBHEREBK
g WENARZBEILRBBHEER - =
e AREIIZDERT - Eit R =%
SENFRERT -

AEBBEBENTEERNERNFEBE
WiE—FERPRERFL -

AERSREE
a) BAXEE

R-BEELFERN_FTERFE+_HA
=t+—H AEENEKRERNFEE
NN

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8H
2007 2006
(US$°000) (US$'000)
FEx FET
336,507 51,835
89,815 49,714




OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Cont'd)

b)

c)

Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ZEH4 (BEEERMRE)
After five years AFE

Contingent liabilities

During the year, the Group has provided corporate guarantees for
the down payment of loans of its employees amounting to
approximately US$481,000 (2006: US$515,000). The management
anticipates that no material liabilities will be arising from the above

guarantees.

Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have any other

commitments or contingent liabilities.

Legal Liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company was not involved

in any material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or claims

was pending or threatened or made against the Company as far as the

Company is aware of.

RE S )

AERIAKE @
b) HEHEEHRE

REER » AEBESTAIREEEZ
HEMRRKEBRSNRELT

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2007 2006
(US$°000) (US$'000)
FEx FET
2,012 1,997
6,838 7,359
365 1,323
9,215 10,679

c) HAEE

FR - -AEBREEINENREH
BETR48NIBET(ZTTREF -
51.58% L) REARER - BEE
A LR ERETEELEEMERXN
afE-

Br PR EEE SN - AR B EAT
MEMmAERIAREE -

)

HEREME
@zié: TEFE+T_A=+T—HLEFE "
RRBIL Y RAEMERFRSENFE - B

EORN/NE] Pﬁ%ﬂ TMEAERIR T s E SR
NAEIMBAFRHIER -
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in Accounting Policies

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, several new
standard, amendment and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January
2007. The details are set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting periods

have been prepared and presented.

Going Concern

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has net current liabilities of
US$21,698,000. Taking into account the financial resources available to
the Group, including internally generated funds and the available banking
facilities, the Group has adequate financial resources for its present
requirements for the next 12 months from the balance sheet date.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group undertakes certain sales and purchases transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuation arises. The Group matches its assets and liabilities in the
same currency as far as possible. The Group and its subsidiaries are
mainly exposed to currency fluctuation of United States dollars and RMB.
The management believes that, considering the working capital position
of the Group, the Group will have sufficient foreign exchange to meet its
foreign exchange liabilities as they become due. It is the Group’s policy

not to enter into derivative transactions for speculative purpose.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

MAEERESTHRED
EAFE AEBEAEAETHESE
HEAg ([EAETMAE]) BhainE
Al - R RRB([HMBBVBRS
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R L EEM B REERNHERRE
A BE S RN EESF BN
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+ 2= 4o A
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OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2007, the gearing ratio, calculated as net borrowings
divided by total equity was 19.2%, compared with 12.7% as at 31
December 2006. Total liability divided by total equity was 57.2%,
compared with 48.0% as at 31 December 2006.

Other Significant Matters

Amalgamation of Semiconductor Business with CR Logic

On 4 December 2007, CR Logic and the Company jointly announced a
proposal which would result in the amalgamation of both companies’
semiconductor businesses under the Group. The Group was to acquire
the semiconductor businesses of CR Logic, being all its semiconductor
operations other than China Resources Semiconductor Company Limited
which operates a 4-inch fab in Tai Po, Hong Kong, by issue of consideration
shares at an aggregate issue price equal to approximately HK$1,448.9
million, representing the net asset value of the companies being acquired
based on the management accounts of such companies as at 30 June
2007 net of any dividend payable. As a part of the transaction, the existing
option holders of CR Logic were offered shares in the Company in

consideration for the cancellation of their share options.

On 13 February 2008, ordinary resolutions were duly passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company in relation to (i) the
acquisition of the semiconductor businesses from CR Logic by the
Company; (ii) the continuing connected transaction arising out of such
acquisition; and (iii) the allotment of CSMC shares to certain directors of
the Company or such other connected persons who are holders of share
options granted by CR Logic in respect of cancellation of their share
options, and a special resolution was also duly passed at the same meeting

in relation to the change of name of the Company.

On 5 March 2008, 3,153,640,010 shares of the Company were issued
as consideration for the aforementioned amalgamation proposal and

option cancellation.
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OPERATING RESULTS (Contd)

Other Significant Matters (Cont'd)

Joint Venture with CR Holdings

On 19 March 2008, the Company has entered into an agreement for the
formation of a joint venture with China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CR Holdings”) under which the Company will participate in the
joint venture for the operation of the 8 inch wafer fabrication line by holding
an indirect 19% shareholding in the joint venture company. The balance
of 81% interest will be held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Holdings.
The total commitment under this joint venture will be US$500 million of
which the Company’s total commitment will be US$95 million and the
balance of US$405 million will be borne by CR Holdings. The joint venture
will then acquire from the Company its entire interest in Qualibest
Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary, which has been
valued at approximately US$58.44 million, being its unaudited net asset
value as at 29 February 2008 adjusted for the market value of a site in
the Wuxi Hi-Tech Development Zone plus the shareholder’s loans of
US$58.7 million up to 29 February 2008. The joint venture will also acquire
from CR Holdings its equity interest in China Fast Limited, a wholly-owned
indirect subsidiary of CR Holdings, at nominal value of US$1 and the
shareholder’s loan of US$200 million up to 29 February 2008 at face
value. The Group will also enter into a services agreement with the joint
venture to provide sales, marketing, purchasing and a variety of other
technical and administrative support services for the 8 inch wafer
operation upon completion of the joint venture agreement. The joint
venture agreement and the services agreement are conditional upon
the approval of independent shareholders of the Company to be

convened.
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PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2008

We expect the year 2008 will be a challenging year for the Company.
According to the press by Department of Economic and Social Affairs of
the United Nations, a continuous economic downturn and slowdown in
consumption in the United States, coupled with the bursting of the
housing-market bubble, the unfolding credit crisis and a further strong
currency depreciation could create more uncertainty across global
financial markets as well as the consumer market. As one of the
semiconductor players, who is targeting on consumer, computer and
commodity market, we have seen a slight market softening for overseas
market from the fourth quarter of 2007 and will speed up the ramping up

of new processes to counteract the uncertainty.

On the other hand, the year 2008 will be the sixth continuing growth year
for semiconductor industry while the Chinese analog semiconductor
market, in terms of sales revenue, is forecasted to grow over 27% in
2008, according to CCID Consulting Co., Ltd., a professional market
research and management consultancy services provider in China. With
the existing approximately 80,000 wpm capacity and successful transition
to an analog foundry, we are well positioned to capture this continuing

growth market opportunity for our future.
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PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2008 (Cont'd)

Year 2008 will also be another milestone year for the Company. The
Company and China Resources Logic have completed the amalgamation
of the semiconductor businesses of both companies into the Company.
After amalgamation, the Company will be one of the top five
semiconductor producers in mainland China. Semiconductor business
will also become one of the five main business segments of China
Resources Group. The wafer foundry business will not only be provided
with more stable orders from our upstream IC design and discrete device
manufacturing businesses, but also be better facilitated and supported
by the downstream IC testing and packaging business. With the upstream
and downstream synergy arising from the amalgamation, the Group will
be able to offer turnkey service to customers, which will be valuable for
the Group in maintaining its relationship with customers. Through the
amalgamation, the Group will distinguish itself from the other
semiconductor companies in China in terms of product portfolio as well
as growth environment. The amalgamation will bring much greater
flexibility in deploying existing resources and discretionary cash flows.
We are optimistic that the amalgamation will broaden and strengthen
the operating base of the Company and will further enhance the
Company’s leading position as one of the largest domestic operators in

the China semiconductor industry.
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Corporate Governance Report

HONG KONG CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company complied with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practice (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that, for the year ended 31
December 2007, they have complied with required standard of dealing
set out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes its responsibilities to shareholders and aims
to protect and enhance shareholders’ value through solid corporate
governance. The Group is committed to ensuring transparent, open and

accountable disclosures.

The Board continuously upholds the appropriate standards of corporate
governance within the Group, thereby ensuring that the business is

conducted in an honest, ethical and responsible manner.

The Board understands its responsibility to prepare the financial
statements, the annual and interim reports in a balanced manner. This
similar responsibility extends to include other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures under the Listing Rules.
The Board will also report to regulators any information which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements. The statement of
the auditors’ about their reporting responsibility on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 95 to
97.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2007, the Board consists of ten Directors, including the
Chairman of the Board, two of whom are Executive Directors and
members of the management. There are eight Non-Executive Directors,
of whom three are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board
benefits from the experience and expertise of each Director. All Board
members understand their duties to take decisions objectively in the

interests of the Company.

The Chairman ensures that the Board members have access to
appropriate financial and relevant documents about the Group’s activities

on a timely basis.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd)

The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholders’ value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group, ensures
effective management and provides proper supervision of the Group’s

business conduct.

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed and
the Company’s direction. Approval of the Board is required for the
strategies of the Group, annual budget, major acquisition and disposal,
dividend policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, remuneration
policy and other major operational and financial matters. Day-to-day
operations of the Group are the responsibility of the Company’s

management.

On 20 March 2008, each Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company has provided a written statement confirming of his/her
independence to the Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company assessed that each Independent Non-Executive Director

continues to be independent.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd) EEE W
The members of the Board of Directors during the year 2007 are: N_ETLFEESENER -
Name Title Date Elected Period of Term  Date First Elected
i3] B EZERH i3 BEZEAM
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu Chairman/Executive Director 29 May 2007 3years 28 January 2003
RETF IR/ HES ZESEFRAZTAA = “EE=F-A-TN\H
Robert LEE Naii President/Executive Director 27 May 2005, (resigned on 3 years 28 January 2003
1 July 2007)
EYSE: BH/908% ZETRFRACZTEA =F —EE=F-A-TNH
RIEZLFLA-RARAE

Elvis DENG Mao-song President/Executive Director 1 July 2007 3years 1 July 2007
B BH/NTES Tt A-H =F —ZEHFLA-R
ZHU Jinkun Non-Executive Director 29 May 2007 3 years 1 September 2006
Re FHTES ZZRHERAZTAA =F “EERFAA-R
WANG Guoping Non-Executive Director 29 May 2007 3years 1 September 2006
FEYF FUTES “EREERTAZTAR =% ZEEREAA-B
Ken ONG Thiam Kin Non-Executive Director 26 May 2006 3years 1 September 2003
AR FNITES ZEEAFRACZTAA =F —ZE=FNA-R
YU Yu Non-Executive Director 26 May 2006 3 years 1 September 2003
T FHTES ZEERERAZTAR =F —EE=FAA-H
CHEN Nan-xiang Non-Executive Director 26 May 2006 3years 1 September 2003
REA FHITES “ZTRERAZTRAH =F —EZ=FAA-H
Kum Loon OON Independent Non-Executive Director 27 May 2005 3years 8 May 2004
neE BUFNTES ZETRFRACZTEA =F —ZEMFRANR
Mark HSUE Chi Nan Independent Non-Executive Director 29 May 2007 3 years 8 May 2004
FER BUFHTES ZZRHERAZTAR =F —ZTMFRANR
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Independent Non-Executive Director 29 May 2007 3 years 8 May 2004

BUFHTES “EZ+FRAZTNA =% —ZEWERANR
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd)

The term of office of each Director, including Independent Non-Executive
Director, is for a period of three years subject to the requirement that
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting pursuant to the Articles 95 and 112 of Article of
Association of the Company. On 20 March 2008, the Company
announced that Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song has resigned as an Executive
Director and President of the Company; Mr. Ken ONG Thiam Kin, Mr. YU
Yu and Dr. CHEN Nan-xiang have resigned as Non-Executive Directors;
and Mr. Mark HSUE Chi Nan has resigned as an Independent Non-

Executive Director.

Also on 20 March 2008, Mr. SONG Lin and Mr. Frank LAI Ni Hium were
appointed as Executive-Directors; Mr. JIANG Wei, Mr. LI Fuzuo and Mr.
DU Wenmin were appointed as Non-Executive Directors; and Professor
KO Ping Keung was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. They shall hold office only until the 2007 Annual
General Meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at

that meeting.

The afore-mentioned resignations and appointments of Directors of the
Company took effect immediately after the conclusion of the meeting of
the Board of Directors held on 20 March 2008 at which the 2007 results,
this annual report and the information contained herein were considered

and approved.

CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at board meetings and that all Directors receive complete and
reliable information in a timely manner whilst the President carries out
the decisions made by the Board and is in charge of the Company’s day
to day management. The roles of the Chairman and the President are

separate and not performed by the same individual.

During the year 2007, Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu was the Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song was an Executive Director of the

Company and the President of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES
MEETING

The attendance of Directors in Board committees meetings during the

year 2007 are as follows:

EEE2SRBNREEZES

R-ZTLFE EENEFEERRE
EZEggHMHFERNAT

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

meetings meetings meetings meetings

Name = EREEE FMESE REZEE
®A 23 28 23 23
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu PR IEF 4 — — 1
Robert LEE Nail FHE" 2 — — —
Elvis DENG Mao-song BRAD * 2 — — —
ZHU Jinkun Ke i 3 — — —
WANG Guoping FEIY 4 — — —
Ken ONG Thiam Kin ERR 4 — 5 —
YU Yu BT 4 5 — —
CHEN Nan-xiang PR = £ 4 — — 1
Kum Loon OON AEE 4 4 — 1
Mark HSUE Chi Nan By 4 — 5 1
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze YBEMA 4 5 5 1

On 11 March 2008, a meeting of Nomination Committee were held. Each
member of the Nomination Committee participated in the meeting. During
the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the bios of Mr. SONG
Lin, Mr. JIANG Wei, Mr. LI Fuzuo, Mr. DU Wenmin, Mr. Frank LAl Ni Hium
and Professor Ko Ping Keung, and recommended to the Board for
appointment of Mr. SONG Lin, Mr. JIANG Wei, Mr. LI Fuzuo, Mr. DU
Wenmin, Mr. Frank LAI Ni Hium and Professor Ko Ping Keung as directors

of the Company.

* resigned from Directorship in 1 July 2007

appointed as an Executive Director and president with effect from 1 July
2007
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the term of
appointment for each of them is for a term of three years commencing

from the date of appointment.
The functions of Non-Executive Directors include the following:

° participating in board meetings of the Company to bring an
independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and

standards of conduct;

° taking the lead where potential conflict of interests arise;

° serving on the audit, remuneration and nomination committees;

and

° scrutinising the Group's performance in achieving agreed corporate

goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary aim of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
compensation packages for the employees of the Group. The
Remuneration Committee is also entrusted to adopt appropriate staff

development and retention policies.

The members of the Remuneration Committee for the year 2007 are set

our on page 4 of this Annual Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Contd)

The roles of the Remuneration Committee as delegated by the Board

are as follow:

° To recommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors, senior management and other
employees of the Group by the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration

matters;

° To determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors

and senior management;

° To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board

from time to time;

° To review and approve the compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is fair and not

excessive to the Company.

° To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that any compensation payment is

reasonable and appropriate;

° To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration for

Non-Executive Directors;

° To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration; and

o To consider other relevant matters as referred to it by the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES t

The members of Nomination Committee are set of on page 5 of this EEZZE &K BHBHRAFEREES ;fﬂ

Annual Report. ER

The roles of Nomination Committee as delegated by the Board are as R ZESESER FHRENT ¢

follow:

To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board regarding

any proposed changes;

To identify individuals suitable and qualified to become Board
members and to make recommendations to the Board on the

selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

To assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, having regard to the requirements under the Listing

Rules; and

To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman and the Executive

Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee for year 2007 are set out on page

4 of this Annual Report.

The roles of the Audit Committee as delegated by the Board are as

follows:

o Review financial statements and formal announcements relating
to financial performance, and review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. Review audit plans and reports of
the external auditors and internal auditors, and consider the
effectiveness of actions or policies taken by Management on the
recommendations and observations. Review the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors annually. Review the nature

and extent of non-audit services performed by the auditors.

° Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and approve

the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor.

° Meet with external auditors and internal auditors, without the

presence of Management, at least annually;
° Ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and

has appropriate standing within the Company at least annually;

° Review interested person transactions;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Contd)

o Report to the Board on material matters, findings and

recommendations;

o Investigate any matters within the Audit Committee’s purview,

whenever it deems necessary; and

° Perform such other functions as the Board may determine.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers has resigned as auditor of the Company with
effect from 31 July 2007.

Both the Board and the Audit Committee of the Company confirmed
that there is no disagreement between the Company and
PricewaterhouseCoopers and no circumstance connected with
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ resignation which the Board and the Audit
Committee of the Company considered should be brought to the attention

of the shareholders of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been appointed as auditors of the
Group following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers and to hold

office until the conclusion of next annual general meeting of the Company.
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i AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd) ZEEE =

~

il The remuneration paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers and Deloitte Touche —ZZ+4& @ TN FREFKEREE)
ff Tohmatsu in 2007 includes: BEMRS AT R E
= .
2 Type (Audit
s /Non-Audit)
§ Service Remuneration  Auditor Al (¥
- EB Be  muUE )
>
§ 2006 Annual Audit US$230,291  PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit
'i —EERFFEEZE ‘ERUKEG RN E R FT ZER
§ 2007 Interim Review US$50,000  Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Audit
8 —TTEREEY =% o RS BT 2T
Special Review for working capital sufficient statement  US$30,647  Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Non-Audit
LEE MR RIEN =) o BAEMR 7 GETANTT FERZEL
Tax Service US$10,805  PricewaterhouseCoopers Non-Audit
SR EOROKEG TR ETEFT FERZH

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT ASEF R ERERE

The Board and management understand that proper internal controls ZEEREREE A EFREL - BEHA I
not only facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, ensuring ¥ TME(RE £ @R A WUE MR - FER
compliance with laws and regulations, but most importantly, they serve  EBSFAREMMEH - REEHZ 0 BERK
to minimize risk exposure for the Group. The Group is committed to the 7% £ & Fr @ S &9 @l [ o 7N &= @ 5 h 7 ik
identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its Bl + ESSRFIE LB E 2 A RIER o &K
business activities and has implemented practical and effective control B E 1T T AIfT R AR EHIHE - £

systems, including: 7
e Aclearly defined organizational structure; o ERETEEMMAEMERE

e Budgeting and forecasting systems for performance measurement o B EEANFEE IR HE - BER

and monitoring of strategic business units; REEMER B
e Regular reviews of financial performance. e THIEZMBERR -
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

The Board has the overall responsibility of maintaining an effective internal
control system. During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of such internal control system in operation. This is achieved through
works done by the Company’s Internal Audit Division, which regularly
carries out internal audit reviews and reports its findings to the Audit
Committee for their consideration and guidance for improvement to the

internal control system.

Communication with Shareholders

During the year under review, the Group has proactively enhanced its
corporate transparency and communications with its shareholders and
the investment community through its annual and interim reports.
Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the Company maintains
its website at www.csmc.com.cn on which press releases,
announcements and financial and other information relating to the

Company and its business are disclosed.

A B 42 ) & [ e R ()

EEATHARARERNAIIEH R
o FA - BRSO RABIEH RS
FEEMA - B TER AR BH AR
ZHEF AR - NEPERAFI e EHETR
MEZEE - XEREZZBSERRN
R HERZEEERRERNEANR
2| R RSl o

B RERE

REBFEARN  AEBEBBFERS KTH
WE - BERRESHCXEWEREERR
RIEEANTHER o AR BIR/E A ub
(www.csmc.com.cn) 3 ETET « A5 &

BRAARRAREEHHNIHREMER

—EZELFFEHRSE ANNUAL REPORT 2007

-
B TR &

AN

AN
EXRB

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

44



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS*

Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, 69, is the Chairman of the Board and an
Executive Director of CR Logic, the substantial shareholder of the
Company. Dr. Chen is also directors of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Dr. Chen graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering in 1965 from the National Taiwan University. He was awarded
a Doctoral degree in Electrical Engineering by Cornell University in 1971.
Dr. Chen was the founder and the former Chairman of Mosel and Mosel-
Vitelic Inc. He was also the founder of Crosslink Technology Partners
and the former Chairman of the board of directors of Above Net. Dr.
Chen has over 31 years of experience in the semiconductor industry. He

founded the Group and has led its management team since then.

Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song, 45, has been appointed as an Executive
Director and President of the Company with effect from 1 July 2007. Mr.
DENG graduated from National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan with a
Bachelor of Science in engineering degree and holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Management School of the
National Taiwan University. Mr. DENG joined the Group in August 2003
as Vice President of Administration and was appointed as Vice President
of Marketing and Sales in April 2004. Mr. Deng has been designated to
Chief Operating Officer of CSMC with effect from 14 February 2007. Mr.
DENG has over 20 years of experience in the semiconductor industry
and has extensive experiences in semiconductor industry and corporate
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Deng was the co-founder
and Vice President of Resources and Corporate Strategy of Ardentec
Corporation, Taiwan and the Director of Liaison, Finance and
Administration of Vanguard International Semiconductor-America,
California, USA.

*

Biographical details of Executive Directors, who were appointed on 20
March 2008, are set out in the announcement of the Company, which was
published on 20 March 2008.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

HITES*

REFEL 6958 EFEEFEELALNF
FERREMBBNAITESE - RELTIR
REKEZRMBEBRARINES - RELR
—NARFEEREIRERE  NBEE
MTRRBELT B - FR—NAE—FHIF
FERBASERIRELTZM - RIF
TRIEY KXY —EZNEIHA RAIMEE
% » IR ACrosslink Technology Partners
MEIMARRB@EEQRNITESR -
BRIETRFEBITERBRB=T—FK
o BRI AR —HEEEARER
MEREEBA °

HEMEE - 4558 - CEZERARFH
TEERAEH B-_ZTTLFLA-HE
£ BAELRERBEBYAAE -
RFEIETBN LB/ EAEHEMRT
PIImERELREU - - HEER_TT=
FARAMBAEEEETHREILERLH—
TEMFMALEZERT S NEERIE
H-MEER_TTHF_ATWBRE
ZEREHLELER - HALENFER
TEREB_THER  INFEETE
REEEBRBAFLELR RNMEAEHE
Al HEEBRAEMEREERNARRD
AIEAlIA A2 — A EE I B KRR &l 42
B REMMEREERRERBRMNER
NEMEMMAEBRS  UBRTBER -

i

.

* MZZZN\F=ZA T HEZEZHIT
EFENREEFBEINEARR ZZZN
FZA-tHEMATNEZASE -



NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS*

Mr. ZHU Jinkun, 53, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company
appointed on 1 September 2006. Mr. ZHU is appointed as Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of CR Logic on 15th January 2003
with overall responsibilities for the CR Logic group operation and
development. He was further appointed as the Chairman of the board of
directors of CR Logic with effect from 28th February, 2006. He is a Director
and of CR Holdings, the immediate holding company of CR Logic. Mr.
ZHU is also Chairman and Executive Director of China Resources
Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CR
Logic and the holding company of CR Logic semiconductor business.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of CR Logic. Mr. ZHU joined
CR Holdings in 1991 and occupied many important positions
successively since then. He is experienced in business administration.
He also has extensive experience in semiconductor operations and has
been responsible for strategic planning, business development and
operation of the CR Logic group’s semiconductor business since 1997.
Mr. ZHU graduated from the Nanjing University, the PRC and obtained
an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from the
University of International Business and Economics, the PRC.

Mr. WANG Guoping, 45, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company
appointed on 1 September 2006. Mr. WANG was appointed as an
Executive Director of CR Logic on 11 March, 2003 and is Chief Executive
Officer of CR Logic with effect from 28 February, 2006. He is also a
Director and General Manager of China Resources Microelectronics
(Holdings) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CR Logic engaged in
semiconductor business of CR Logic group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of CR Logic group. Mr. WANG has extensive
experience in semiconductor research & development and production
management. He is also well versed in managing operation of
manufacturing bipolar integrated circuits and discrete devices, testing
& packaging. Mr. WANG obtained a Master Degree in Engineering from
the University of Electronic Science and Technology, Chengdu, the PRC.

* Biographical details of Non-Executive Directors, who were appointed on
20 March 2008, are set out in the announcement of the Company, which
was published on 20 March 2008.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. ONG Thiam Kin, 50, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company
appointed on 1 September 2003. Mr. ONG was appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of CR Logic on 28 May 2001 with
overall responsibilities for the financial and legal operations of CR Logic
group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of CR Logic group.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and members of the national accounting bodies of
Singapore and Malaysia. He obtained a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of Southern Queensland,
Australia. He has more than 21 years of diverse range of experience in
professional practice and various industries straddling countries and

cities in Southeast Asia, the PRC and Hong Kong.

Mr.YU Yu, 46, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company appointed on
1 September 2003. Mr. YU also serves as executive vice president of
CR Logic, responsible for the business development of CR Logic group.
Mr. YU is also a director of CR Microelectronics and Faithway. Mr. YU
has more than 11 years experience in direct investment and project
management. He holds a Master degree in Engineering and a Master

degree in Business Administration.

Dr. CHEN Nan-xiang, 47, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company
appointed on 1 September 2003. Dr. CHEN also serves as a director
and deputy general manager of CR Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited
with responsibility for strategic planning, product development and R&D.
He is also a director and the president of Wuxi CR Semiconductor Wafer
& Chips Ltd. Dr. Chen has more than 18 years of semiconductor industrial
experience. In addition, Dr. CHEN has worked at the Max Planck Institute
for Microstructures in Germany as a visiting scientist, the Fraunhofer
Institute of Integrated Circuits in Germany as a research fellow, and the
Institute of Microelectronics of Peking University as an associate
professor. Dr. CHEN received his Bachelor degree from the University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China in 1982, Master degree
from Shaanxi Research Institute of Microelectronics in 1985, and PhD

from Beijing Normal University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS*

Mrs. Kum Loon OON, 56, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mrs. OON graduated from the
University of Singapore in 1973 with a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree. She was awarded the Esso Scholarship during her tertiary
education and completed her honours degree in Business Administration
at the University of Singapore in 1974. Mrs. OON has approximately 30
years’ experience in the banking industry. Over this period, she led and
managed a diverse range of portfolios in DBS Group. Her extensive
experience included credit management, capital markets and risk
management. She retired from DBS as chief financial officer in 2003
where her responsibilities included the financial reporting of the affairs
and activities of the entire DBS Group, as well as capital management
and alliances and acquisitions, investor relations, and asset liability

management.

Mr. Mark HSUE Chi Nan, 57, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mr. HSUE graduated from
National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan with a Bachelor degree in
Electrophysics in 1973. He was awarded a Master degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of California, Santa Barbara in 1978. Mr.
Hsue also serves as a director and the president of Uni-Pac Management
Company, a venture capital management company focused on biotech
and high-tech investments. Mr. HSUE has a number of years of
experience in semiconductor and high-tech industries. He was a co-
founder of and served various executive positions within Mosel and

Mosel-Vitelic Inc.

* Biographical details of Independent Non-Executive Director, who was
appointed on 20 March 2008, are set out in the announcement of the

Company, which was published on 20 March 2008.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA, 41, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mr. YBEMA obtained an LLM
in business law from the University of Leiden in 1990 and in 1993 gained
certification as corporate counsel through the Dutch bar exam equivalent
for in-house counsel. Mr. YBEMA was part of the Corporate Legal
Department at Royal Philips Electronics N.V. of the Netherlands, focusing
on its activities in the PRC. Mr. YBEMA was first assigned to Hong Kong
in May 1995 where his brief included Philips’ Asian and PRC Mergers &
Acquisitions activities. In 1997, Mr. YBEMA joined US-based Global IT
outsourcing giant Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”) in 1997 as
European Counsel in London and in 2000 returned to Asia as General
Counsel for CSC's Asia Group. He currently has an international corporate
and cross-border M&A practice which involves acting as Asia-Pacific
and China corporate counsel to major MNCs in a variety of industries.
Mr. YBEMA is co-founder and first President of the Hong Kong Corporate
Counsel Association and was also a Founding Member of the Singapore
Corporate Counsel Association. He serves on the Professional Services
Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and

speaks seven languages including passable Mandarin Chinese.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Mr. Frank LAI Ni Hium, 46, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
Mr. LAl graduated from the University of Western Australia in 1982 with
a Bachelor degree in Commerce. He was awarded a graduate diploma
in Business and Administration from the Curtin University of Technology
of Western Australia in 1988. He is a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practicing Accountants. Before he joined the Group in May
2000, Mr. LAl served as the chief executive officer of Logic International
Ltd. and the chief financial officer in Eagle Brand Holdings Ltd. listed in
Singapore. He is also a member of the advisory board of Business Week
Asia CFO Forum. Mr. LAl joined the Group in May 2000.

Mr. TSAI Nein-nan, 55, is the Vice President of the Group and General
Manager of Fab 2. Mr. TSAI graduated from Tung Hai University with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering in 1976. He was
awarded a Master of Science degree in Chemical Engineering by Lamar
University, Beaumont, Texas in 1983. He has more than 21 years of
experience in the semiconductor industry as a photo engineer of UMC,
process engineer of Philips Electronics N.V., fab manager of Hualong
Microelectronic Corporation, manufacturing director of ProMOS
Technologies Inc. and Director of Manufacturing of Mosel-Vitelic Inc. Mr.
TSAI joined the Group in September 2001.

Mr. Steve HUANG Dong-tsair, 49, is the Group’s Vice President and
General Manager of Fab 3. Mr. HUANG holds a Master degree in
Chemistry from Fujen University, Taiwan. He has over 21 years of
experience in the semiconductor industry. Mr. HUANG served as a deputy
director of Mosel-Vitelic Inc. His previous experience also includes
positions at Electronic Research Service Organization (ERSO) of Industrial
Technology Research Institute (ITRI, Taiwan) and Millipore Asia Limited
Taiwan Branch Office (US). Mr. HUANG joined the Group in October
1999.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT (Contd)

Mr. TENG Jingxin, 63, is the Vice President of Domestic Business
Development of the Group. Mr. TENG graduated from Southeast
University China with a Bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering in 1968.
He has over 39 years of experience in the semiconductor industry. Mr.
TENG served as Chief Engineer of Huajing Group, Director of Huajing
Bipolar IC Research Department and Chief Engineer of the Bipolar IC
Chief Factory of Huajing Group, and Vice Superintendent of 58th Institute
of Microelectronics. Mr. TENG joined the Group in January 2002.

Mr. Elvis HUANG Yu-ping, 46, is the Vice President of Production of the
Group. Mr. HUANG graduated from National Central University Taiwan
with a Master degree in Physics in 1988. Mr. HUANG has more than 16
years of experience in the semiconductor industry with previous
employment at Mxic, ProMOS Technologies Inc. and Mosel. Mr. Huang

joined the Group in September 2002.

Mr. Gerry FORTIN, 51, is the Vice President of Marketing & Sales of the
Group. Mr. FORTIN graduated from the University of Maine with a
Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering degree. Mr. FORTIN has
over 27 years of leadership experience with international foundry
business management, new business development, product engineering
and manufacturing operations. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. FORTIN
worked at IBM, National Semiconductor and Fairchild Semiconductor.
Mr. FORTIN joined the Group in January 2006.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT (Contd)

Mr. SU Wei, 45, is the Vice President of Quality of the Group. Mr. SU
graduated from Hua Zhong University of Science and Technology, China
with a Bachelor degree in Semiconductor Devices and Physics. Mr. SU
has over 21 years of experience in the semiconductor industry. He was
formerly the Deputy Director and Chief Engineer of the Huajing MOS IC
Fab. He joined the Group in February 1998.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements

for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company owns and operates the first and now one of
the largest open semiconductor foundries in China as measured by
operational capacity. The Group focuses on the semiconductor market
in China and is principally engaged in providing manufacturing services

mainly for analog and logic semiconductors.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical

segments is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and appropriations of the Group are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 98 to this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

financial year ended 31 December 2007.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
company during the year are set out in note 24 and note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out on

page 101 to this Annual Peport.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2007 amounted
to US$107.09 million (2006: US$108.12 million).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive or similar rights under the Cayman Islands law
or the memorandum and articles of association of the Company which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its

existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on page 9 of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company did not

purchase, sale or redeem shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

A summary of the Directors during the year is set out on pages 3 to 4 of

this Annual Report.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service agreement
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Mrs. Kum Loon OON, Mr. Mark HSUE Chi Nan and Mr. Ralph Sytze
YBEMA are Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. On
20 March 2008, each Independent Non-Executive Director has provided
a written statement confirming of her/his independence to the Company.
In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company assessed that each

Independent Non-Executive Director continues to be independent.

On 20 March 2008, the Company announced that Mr. SONG Lin and Mr.
Frank LAI Ni Hium were appointed as Executive-Directors, Mr. JIANG
Wei, Mr. LI Fuzuo, Mr. DU Wenmin were appointed as Non-Executive
Directors; and Professor KO Ping Keung was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. The above
appointments took effect from the conclusion of the meeting of the board
of directors of the Company held on 20 March 2008. They shall hold
office only until the 2007 Annual General Meeting of the Company and

shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years which shall continue
thereafter unless and until the Company or the Director serves a written
notice of termination three months in advance during the term of the
agreement or anytime thereafter. Particulars of the service contracts of
the Directors are in all material respects the same. The compensation of

the Executive Directors is subject to review each year.

None of the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) has entered into any service contract with the
Company. Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the term
of appointment of each of such Directors is for three years commencing
from the date of appointment. The Company and Mrs. Kum Loon OON
subsequently agree that her appointment may be terminated with

immediate effect by either party.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service agreement
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATIONS

The emolument payable to each Executive Director is based on (i) his
relevant qualifications experience and expertise, (ii) his duties and
responsibilities and (iii) performance of the Company. The current market

situation will also be taken into account.

The emolument payable to each Non-Executive Director (including
Independent Non-Executive Director) is based on the responsibilities

and undertaking to the Board.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a consultancy agreement dated 1 July 2006
with Wiston Management Limited (“Wiston”), which is owned as to 50%

by Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, being a Director of the Company.

Under the consultancy agreement, the Company engaged Wiston to
recommend and to procure executives, as expatriate employees of
management grade within the Group, to provide managerial services to
the Company. The consultancy fees are subject to adjustment depending
on the number of executives providing services to the Group. All of the
consultancy fees charged by Wiston to the Company are to pay for the
remuneration of such executives for providing managerial services to
the Company. The agreement is for a term of three years and may be

terminated by either party on one month’s written notice.

The total remuneration payable to each executive is made after
negotiation between the Group and the individual executive by reference

to the market rate.

Except for those mentioned above, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company or
any other subsidiaries was a party, and in which any Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted

at any time during the year ended 31 December 2007.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management during the year

2007 are set out on pages 45 to 52 of this Annual Report.

Biographical details of Directors, who were appointed on 20 March 2008,
are set out in the announcement of the Company, which was published
on 20 March 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2007, the Directors and the President of the Company
and their respective associates had the following interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he was taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register of the Company
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange:

A: Long position in shares of the Company

(a) Shares of the Company allocated to the Directors under
the Equity Incentive Plan

As at 31 December 2007, particulars of outstanding shares
allocated but not exercised to Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) under the Equity

Incentive Plan were as follows:

Director

BE=x

Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu PRIEFIEL

EERFETHRAERESE

m

RZZEZ+F+A=+—H  AQAE
ERBHRBEEZENBEAREARTR
HigszE (EEREHFRHEBHIEXV
) ;i - HERGO HESFFHERE
BH R E GG EXVERE 78D S A AN
eARFIRBRA(BEREEF PR
RO B R T W R AR EE B B
MmIORE) ¢ HRIBE F KA RPIE352
A AZ GO MM AR B ELMA
HIRE ETARATEA EH AR ERET
BHrRXSHRESFRIZENR - AMERRQF]
MBS AR AT

A: RERTRGNER

(a) RIBIRDERE LA TFE
=) 4via
RZEZLEF+ZA=+—
H - RERMDEBTERNES
REEZENHEA(EER
EMRAD BB RITEH
BEITROHFBNT :

Outstanding
Shares allocated Approximate
but not exercised percentage
under the Equity of interest in

Incentive Plan the Company

RIBR D R RARAF]
TEIE A E R
BRITER S BAOBEAE
2,330,000 0.08%
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fin DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTSIN EER T ETHRAENZ5E

" SECURITIES (Contd) % (1)
@
,HH A: Long position in shares of the Company (Cont'd) A: REQXTRBHITFRE (&)
% (b) Shares of the Company held by the directors (b) EFHFBHIA L ARG
‘E As at 31 December 2007, particulars of shares held by RZEEEF+ A =+—
% Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the H EERFESEMNEEA
= Listing Rules), directly and indirectly, were as follows: T (EER TR B RHE
g ERANRGNT
2
s Approximate
percentage
of interest in
the Company
RAEQH
Director Shares Held FEZ B
Bx RO EAE Bok
Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu PRIEFiEL 37,293,200 1.36%
Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song BN 6,943,230 0.25%
Mr. Ken ONG Thiam Kin FARRIE 1,000,000 0.04%
Total Bt 45,236,430 1.65%
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief R EXFIREES - ARFE
executives of the Company or their respective associated EHIFETHRABRFEESAH
had any personal, family, corporate or other interests in the BB EE AL BN AR RS HEE
share capital of the Company or any of its associated AAEZE (TR R FBHFRE
corporations as defined in the SFO. B G1) AR AR R A E A E

A RIE - AR EAMER -
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SECURITIES (Contd)

< (43
1 (48)

B: Long position in CR Logic shares, a substantial B: RAQATFTERREBEIR

shareholder of the Company T E
(a) Share options of CR Logic allocated to the Directors (a) DB FEEBENZEBBEAE
R

As at 31 December 2007, particulars of outstanding share
options allocated but not exercised to Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) under

CR Logic's share option scheme were as follow:

Name of Director

Expg

Mr. Zhu Jinkun
KewksE

Mr. WANG Guoping
FETRE

Mr. Ken ONG Thiam Kin
FMELAE

Date of
grant

RHAH

25/04/20071"
02/10/20022
09/04/2003°
13/01/2004*

09/04/2003°
13/01/2004°

25/04/2001"
02/10/2002
09/04/2003°
13/01/2004°

NoFELFT A=+
B+ R T B B B T 8
MEFRESHEOBRA
(R LTRA) B REN R
T RBRERENT -

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
asat1 Outstanding
January, as at 31
Exercise 2007  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed December,
price ® during during during during 2007
pershare —ZE+H theyear theyear theyear the year i

s8R -A-H ER ER ER BR —2BtF
TEE  HATHE FARE FATE FAEE FAKN =8
(HK$) 000 000 000 '000 000 =t-H
(&7 T T T T T EKRTE

0.547 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 — — —
0.570 800,000 — — — — 800,000
0.479 2,800,000 — 2,800,000 — — —
0.906 1,500,000 — — — — 1,500,000
0.479 2,000,000 — — — — 2,000,000
0.906 1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000
0.547 2,000,000 — 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
0.570 1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000
0479 500,000 — 500,000 — — —
0.906 1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTSIN EER T ETHRAENZ5E

SECURITIES (Contd)

4 /j:\
(#8)

B: Long position in CR Logic shares, a substantial B: RAQATFZTERREFEIKR

shareholder of the Company (Cont'd) MmHEFE (&)
(a) Share options of CR Logic allocated to the Directors (a) DB TFEBNERBEAE
(Cont'd) R (&)
Number of share options
BREZE
Outstanding
asat1 Outstanding
January, as at 31
Exercise 2007 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed December,
price R® during during during during 2007
Date of pershare —ZE+&  theyear theyear theyear theyear ®»
Name of Director grant Bk —-A-H [Z5:3 2R 2R ER ZEZtE
] RERH THE HRTE FRARE FATE  FREE  FAXX +=A
(HK$) ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 =1-H
(B7L) T T TR Tt T  ERTE
Mr. Yu Yu 04/12/2001¢ 0.790 1,500,000 — — — — 1,500,000
BFRE 02/10/20022 0.570 1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000
09/04/2003° 0.479 500,000 — — — — 500,000
13/01/2004° 0.906 1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000
Dr. CHEN Nan-xiang 03/04/20037 0.479 160,000 — 160,000 — — —
RSt 13/01/2004° 0906 800,000 — 800,000 — — -
Notes: Pt =
1. The exercisable period is divided into 2 tranches exercisable 1. 1TEBRSs AMERRE - 95
during the periods from 25 April 2003 and 2004 to 24 April H-TE=FR-ZTTMF
2011. MA-+HRABRE-T——
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Contd)

B: Long position in CR Logic shares, a substantial
shareholder of the Company (Cont’d)

(a) Share options of CR Logic allocated to the Directors

(Contd)

Notes: (Cont’d)

2. The exercisable period is divided into 3 tranches exercisable
during the periods from 2 October 2003, 2004 and 2005 to 1
October 2012.

3. The exercisable period is divided into 3 tranches exercisable
during the periods from 9 April 2004, 2005 and 2006 to 8 April
2013.

4. The exercisable period during which the share options may

be exercised is from 13 January 2004 to 12 January 2014.

5. The exercisable period is divided into 3 tranches exercisable
during the periods from 13 January 2005, 2006 and 2007 to
12 January 2014.

6. The exercisable period is divided into 3 tranches exercisable
during the periods from 3 December 2002,2003 and 2004 to
3 December 2011.

7. The exercisable period during which the share options may
be exercised is from 3 April 2006 to 2 April 2013.

EERFETHAERESE

hY
ﬁ(?a/

B: RAQBAETERREHBIHR
DEF R (@)

(a) 7B TEFBHIZEEBEHE
B HE ()

GEE

OB O

(&)

B H7

tl/

R={EERE - 25l
=F - - ZZTMF
ZEAFTAZBER
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A
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TTNE  —EERE
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—E—-=FMAB/\H - HfE
FIATTE ©

4. %k%TM_ggﬂi—ﬁ
+=RE-_Z—MFE—A+
—A ,HﬂF'aEJYT'LMT@E °

5. fIEHINR={EHKE - 55l

H-_ZZERF —TTRF
MZTTLF—-—A+=Hi8
EF-MFE-A+ZAILE
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Contd)

B: Long position in CR Logic shares, a substantial
shareholder of the Company (Cont’d)

(b) Shares of CR Logic held by the Directors

As at 31 December 2007, particulars of shares held by
Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the

Listing Rules), directly and indirectly, were as follows:

Director

=

Mr. ZHU Jinkun FNcibitas

Mr. ZHU Jinkun’s Spouse Kokt 2R
Mr. WANG Guoping FEIF A

Mr. Ken ONG Thiam Kin ERREAE

Mr. YU Yu BIFSLAE

Mr. YU Yu's Spouse BIF S
Dr. CHEN Nan-xiang PRE AN L

Total st

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED # BMEFER A A

EENTETHAERESE
= ()
B: RAQATAETERREFBBR
BHEE (&®)
(b) EFHFBHEBBHIK G
R-TET+E+-F=+—
A BERESEANMEA
+(E&B FHBAD EERE
BEANRHMT

Approximate

percentage

of interest

in CR Logic

REBR

Shares Held RSN
iR RER R Btk
5,350,000 0.190%
160,000 0.006%
1,108,000 0.039%
1,500,000 0.053%
100,000 0.004%
60,000 0.002%
960,000 0.034%
9,238,000 0.328%




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF
THE COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2007, shareholders (other than Directors or President of the Company)
who had interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or which are expected to be, directly or indirectly,
interested or deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of the Company, were as follows:

FTERRAAXRQFNER

BARRESEMA  R-TT+&+=A
=+—H  RAEAQBRMLBEBROP -
BERBEIZF LB GROIEXVBE2RE
355 EP B {6 SCZR A AR 1 A48 B 0 2 200
B SEBARAIREESFRBAEERNE
336EMFEMN B MR ERN
KE - NTEHSEEEEREI R A
BEMBRFNEMER FERARRKRE
RE 0 o] 48 5l AR 2 T .5 % 3K A
FORR(TEERARANEEREAR) &
mmT

Percentage of
Aggregate Long
Position in
Shares to the
Total Issued

Share Capital of

the Company

HERBER

BEBEARDT
Company Name Number of shares BRITRA
ARER RAEE BEEAL
China Resources National Corporation® (‘CRNC”) R BIZEEAAR O ([FREZEHE]) 1,984,967,848 72.41%
China Resources Co., Limited™ (‘CR Co") ZBRHERDAN ([EHLF)) 1,984,967,848 72.41%
CRC Bluesky Limited (“CRCB”) CRC Bluesky Limited™ (“CRCB") 1,984,967,848 72.41%
CR Holdings™ ZH (£E) O 1,984,967,848 72.41%
Splendid Time Investments Inc. (V (“Splendid”) Splendid Time Investments Inc.!” (“Splendid”) 1,984,967,848 72.41%
China Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic”) ZEBBERLAY ((EEDHHR]) 1,984,967,848 72.41%
CRT (BVI) Limited® (“CRT") CRT (BVI) Limited® (“CRT”) 691,437,790 25.22%
China Resources Microelectronics ERNET (Ek) BRAA 691,437,790 25.22%

(Holdings) Limited® (“CR Microelectronics’) ([EBEHET])

Faithway Resources Limited® (“Faithway”) Faithway Resources Limited® (“Faithway”) 691,437,790 25.22%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF
THE COMPANY (Contd)

Notes:

1 CRNC is a state-owned enterprise which is the parent company of CR Co,
a company incorporated in the PRC, which in turn is the parent company
of CRCB, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is in
turn the parent company of CR Holdings, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong. Splendid, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is
interested in one third or more of the voting power at general meetings of
CR Logic, a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Each of CRNC, CR Co, CRCB, CR Holdings,
Splendid and CR Logic is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by CR Logic and Faithway by virtue of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.

2 Faithway is wholly owned by CR Microelectronics, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which is in turn wholly owned by CRT, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. CRT is wholly owned by CR Logjic.
Each of Faithway, CR Microelectronics and CRT is deemed to be interested
in the shares of the Company by virtue of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2007.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save the consultancy agreement as disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interest in Contracts”, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest customer Wuxi China Resources Semico Co., Ltd.
constituted 10.3% of the Group’s revenue in 2007. The Group’s top five

customers constituted a total of 33.7% of revenue in 2007.

During the year, Wuxi China Resources Microelectronics Co., Ltd. was
the largest supplier constituting 20.2% of the Group’s purchases. 45.0%

of purchases were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Both Wuxi China Resources Semico Co., Ltd and Wuxi China Resources
Microelectronics Co., Ltd are subsidiaries of CR Logic. Save as disclosed,
none of the Directors or their respective associates or (as far as the
Directors are aware) any other shareholders owning more than 5% of
the share capital of the Company were interested in any of the five largest

suppliers and customers of the Group.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans are set out in note 23 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS

(1) Equity Incentive Plan

The Company adopted the Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) on 8
May 2004 by way of ordinary resolution of shareholders. The
principle terms of the Plan, total plan amount as well as current

status is as follows:

(a) Objective of the Plan

The objective of the plan is to share the pride of ownership
among employees and to reward their performance and

contributions

(b) Eligible Participants of the Plan

The eligible participants of the Plan is any full time employee
of the Company or of any subsidiary and any Executive, Non-
Executive or Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company or of any subsidiary provided always that such
term shall exclude any person who has tendered his
resignation or who at the relevant time is working out his/her
period of notice pursuant to his/her employment contract or

otherwise.

(c) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. Ken ONG
Thiam Kin (Chairperson) Mr. Mark HUSE Chi Nan and Mr.
Ralph Sytze YBEMA, has been delegated with the power to
administer the Plan. It will, among other things, approve (i)
the total number of shares (which number shall not exceed
the total plan amount mentioned in point (d)) to be allocated
to eligible participants of the Plan, and (ii) the respective
entitlements of the participants, in each case based on the

recommendation of the Executive Directors from time to time.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Contd)

(1)

Equity Incentive Plan (Cont'd)

(@

(e)

Total Plan Amount and Individual Limit

Total number of Shares which may be allocated and issued
under the Plan shall not exceed 15% of the total number of
Shares in issue from time to time. The initial total plan amount,
as approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by way of
ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.

Total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to the
Plan in any financial year shall not exceed 3% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the close of business on the

last business day of the preceding financial year.

Total number of Shares issued and to be issued to any
selected employees in any 12-month period shall not exceed

1% of the total number of Shares in issue.

Granting and Vesting of the Shares Under the Plan

Among the total plan amount, as at 31 December 2007, a
collective of 160,977,294 shares had already been allocated
to the eligible participants by the Company and are subject
to a four-year vesting period in which a quarter of such
number of shares will vest each year during the four-year
period. No amount is payable for acceptance of allocation of
shares by eligible participants and HK$0.078 per share is
payable by eligible participants for subsequent allotment of
shares so vested. As at the date of this Annual Report, the
total number of shares available for allocation under the Plan
is 85,922,706 which represents about 3.1% of the issued

share capital of the Company.
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. (1) Equity Incentive Plan (Contd) (1) BREBEE &
JT‘ (e) Granting and Vesting of the Shares Under the Plan (e) MRIFEEENRHIIR G K IK7D
” (Cont'd) 5B (&)
S
Q Number of shares allocated
= SRORABE
% Balances
& Balance Cancelled/ as at 31
'g as at Lapsed December,
5 Exercise 1 January, Granted Exercised during 2007
. price 2007 during  during theyear — BB 45
Date per share _ZZ+ % theyear the year FA +=A
of grant s —HA—H FR FR g8 =+-—8
RHBAH TEE ihek 2t BT SR o2
(HK$) ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000 ‘000
(B7) T T T T T
Peter Chen 01/10/2003" 0.078 2,330 — — — 2,330
Cheng-yu,
PRIFF
Robert Lee Naii* 01/10/2003" 0.078 1,665 — — — 1,665
FTHE*
Elvis Deng 01/10/2003" 0.078 1,330 — 1,330 — —
Mao-song**
BRI
Management and 01/10/2003" 0.078 26,149 — 6,968 993 18,188
employees 26/01/2005' 0.078 6,737 — 3,829 599 2,309
EEENEE 02/01/2006' 0.078 5,632 — 1,575 1,513 2,544
16/05/2006" 0.078 2,040 — 260 578 1,202
Total 45,883 — 13,962 3,683 28,238
* resigned from Directorship on 1 July, 2007. * RZFTLFLA-BHET
BE -
> appointed as an Executive Director and President with effect - R-ZFTLFLA-AEZ
from 1 July, 2007 and resigned with effect from 20 March 2008. TRATEERBIHIR
T NEFE=ZR - +HEE -
Notes: it
1. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately 1. BEIEZBAERRRD
before the date on which the options were exercised was ) NHEF IR (B /50.618
HK$0.618. AT .

69 CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED # B#M EF ER 2



SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Contd)

(1)

()

Equity Incentive Plan (Cont'd)

(f)

(9)

Term of the Plan

The term of the Plan is for ten years from the date of adoption
(8 May 2004), subject to early termination by way of ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company in a general

meeting.

Interested Shareholders not Entitled to Vote

Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from

Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the Plan.

Share Option Scheme

In addition to the Plan, the Company, as approved by its

shareholders on 27 May 2005 by way of ordinary resolution,

adopted Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”). The principle terms

of the Scheme, total scheme amount as well as current status are

as follows:

(@)

Objective of the Scheme

The objective of the Scheme is to provide participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
Scheme provided the Company with a flexible means of either
retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,

compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Contd)

()

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

(b) Eligible Participants of the Scheme

(c)

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

The eligible participants of the Scheme is any directors,
employees, advisors, consultants, distributors, contracts,
contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, service
providers of any member of the Group who the Remuneration
Committee consider, in its sole discretion, have contributed

or will contribute to the Group.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. Ken ONG
Thiam Kin (Chairperson) Mr. Mark HUSE Chi Nan and Mr.
Ralph Sytze YBEMA, has been delegated with the power to
administer the Scheme. It will, among other things, (i)
consider, in its sole discretion, the eligible participants (ii)
approve the total number of shares (which number shall not
exceed the total scheme amount) to be allocated to eligible
participants of the Scheme, and (iii) approve the respective
entitlements of the participants, in each case based on the

recommendation of the Executive Directors from time to time.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Contd)

()

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

(d) Total Scheme Amount and Individual Limit

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company and the shares which may fall to
be issued under the Plan in aggregate must not exceed 30%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under this Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of

the Scheme by shareholders.

Total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in

issue.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Contd)

(2)

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

(e) Granting and Vesting of the Shares Under the Scheme

Among the total Scheme amount, as at 31 December 2007,
a collective of 22,078,000 shares had already been allocated
to the eligible participants by the Company. HK$1 is payable
for acceptance of an offer of option. The subsequent price
for which share shall be no less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued be the Stock Exchange on the date of grants,
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately before the date of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of a share. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the total number of shares available for allocation
under the Plan is 243,134,198 which represents about 8.9%

of the issued share capital of the Company.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Contd) Bt RS E () h
(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont'd) (2) BEBREFTE (® @
i
(e) Granting and Vesting of the Shares Under the Scheme (e) WRIZEREZIRLERBRIDE 5
R EFE (&) @
'9
i
Number of shares allocated i
SR BREN R 0
Balances o
Balance Cancelled/ as at 31 ,9
o
as at Lapsed December Q
Exercise 1January Granted Exercised during 2007 s
price 2007 during during the year —_EZ+tF
Date per share _ZEZ+4% theyear the year FRE +=A
of grant #K —H-—A FR FRA ¥8 =+—8
REAH TEE e 2Rt 2171 K% i
(HK$) 000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 000
(F7T) Fix Fix Fix Fix F A%
Management and  08/09/2006'2 0.360 21,291 — 2,150 800 18,341
employees ZETREF
EEENEE HANBR2
28/05/2007° 0.750 — 1,987 — 400 1,587
—EELF
EAZtNB®
Total
st 21,291 1,987 2,150 1,200 19,928
Notes: e
1. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before 1. BETEZBRIER RS INE
the date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.599. U THE A0.5699% T -
2. Share options granted under the Scheme on 8 September 2006 are 2. RZZEZRFNANR - B
subject to a four-year vesting period from the date of allocation during BETEI TR EME Hx 2R
which a quarter of such number of share options will vest each year Bohl HEHRRTENNESR
during the four-year period. BE RZOFRENE—
F MOz —HBRESSH
& o
3. Share options granted under the Scheme on 28 May 2007 are subject 3. RZZEZ+FRA=-+NH"
to one-year vesting period from the participant's employment starting ERETE T RENERES
date as approved by Remuneration Committee. BRBNFHEES Fﬁ?ﬂ: S
mEZEBARBTEN—F
HEH -
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Contd)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

(f)  Term of the Scheme

The term of the Scheme is for ten years from the date of
adoption (27 May 2005), subject to early termination by way
of ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in

a general meeting.

(g) Interested Shareholders not Entitled to Vote
Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from
Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the

Scheme.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group had the following
transactions, which would need to be disclosed as continuing connected

transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Storage and transportation of dangerous goods with
Wuxi Huajing Multi-Services Co., Ltd.

On 1 July 2006, Fab 1 entered into an agreement for the provision
of storage and transportation of dangerous chemical goods by
Wuxi Huajing Multi-Services Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Services”), which is a
subsidiary of CR Logic, to Fab 1. The agreement was effective
from 2 January 2007 for a term of three years ending 31 December
2009, and constituted a continuing connected transaction of the

Company.

The annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 December
2009 is RMB 1,800,000 (US$236,939).

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB1,582,347 (US$208,289).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

2.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

Lease of fab premises and supporting facilities with
China Resource Microelectronics Co., Ltd.

Fab 1 entered into agreements with Wuxi China Resources
Microelectronics Co., Ltd (“Wuxi CR”) which is a subsidiary of CR
Logic, for the lease of fab premises and supporting facilities from
Wuxi CR. Those agreements, as a whole, constituted a continuing

connected transaction of the Company.

The lease of the fab premises and supporting facilities is governed
by two agreements, both dated 1 March 2003, and a supplemental
agreement dated 6 June 2004, all between Fab 1 and Wuxi CR.

The rental is at a fixed sum subject to adjustment with reference to
changes in the prevailing market rates which may be caused by
any changes to the PRC national policies from time to time.
Furthermore, the parties may review the rental every three years
and come to further agreement on adjustment (if any) in the event
of material changes to market conditions. The lease covers the
term of operation of Fab 1, which expires in July 2049, unless
otherwise terminated, and the lease will be automatically renewed
during the term of operation of Fab 1 at 20-year interval until 2049

or otherwise terminated.

The annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December
2009 are RMB9,500,000 (US$1,250,510).

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB9,120,999 (US$1,200,621).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

3.

The consultancy agreement with Wiston Management
Limited

On 1 July 2006, the Company entered into a consultancy agreement
with Wiston Management Limited (“Wiston”), which is owned as to
50% by each of Peter CHEN Cheng-yu who is an Executive Director
to the Company, and Robert LEE Naii, who resigned from an
Executive Director on 1 July 2007. Accordingly, Wiston is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and
the transaction is a continuing connected transaction to the
Company. The agreement took effect from 1 August 2006 to 30
June 2009. Under the agreement, the Company engaged Wiston
to recommend and to procure executives, as expatriate employees
of management grade within the Group, to provide managerial
services to the Company. The consultancy fees are subject to
adjustment depending on the number of executives providing
services to the Group. All of the consultancy fees charged by Wiston
to the Company are to pay the executives for providing managerial

services to the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

3.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

The Consultancy Agreement with Wiston Management
Limited (Cont'd)

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2009
are RMB5,000,000 (US$658,163), RMB5,000,000 (US$658,163)
and RMB2,500,000 (US$329,082) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB1,494,983 (US$196,789).

Wafer milling service provided by Wuxi CR Mirco-
Assemb Tech Ltd.

On 1 July 2006, Fab 1 entered into an agreement with Wuxi CR
Mirco-Assemb Tech Ltd. (“Micro-Assemb”), which is a subsidiary
of CR Logic, for wafer milling service provided by Micro-Assemb,
which constituted a continuing connected transaction of the
Company. The agreement took effect from 19 March 2007 to 31
December 2009.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

4.

Wafer milling service provided by Wuxi CR Mirco-
Assemb Tech Ltd. (Cont'd)

Under the agreements, Micro-Assemb agreed to provide wafer
milling services to Fab 1 at various fixed rates for different types of
wafer milling as and when requested by Fab 1. The fee payable
by the Group to Micro-Assemb is calculated in accordance with
the agreed fixed rates having regard to the size and number of

warfers milled by Micro-Assemb.

The annual caps for the above transactions for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2009 is RMB4,000,000 (US$526,531).

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB147,604 (US$19,429).

BERS )

4.

BEERZBENRERAFM
RAH R E T ERS (@)

BEZEHE  RENBERAEE—
BERE B EETRERTR

fm (Bl ¥ R AR B B2 (AR (B T BB AR 75
AEERAZEMEZENNER =
BRBEMRITENRE X DRE
CRBENBEERIM -

il

REBE_TTZNF+_A=1—H
“EAFERF  LARSNFE
EBR A A K ¥4,000,0007T (526,531
XTT) °

=

BE-—TTLF+-A=+—AL
FE LT ZHREBAARE
147,6047T (19,429% 7T)

—EZLEFEEHRE ANNUAL REPORT 2007

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

80



5 5 =

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

81

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

5.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

New office lease agreement with Wuxi CR

Fab 1 and Wuxi CR entered into an office lease agreement on 19
March 2004, which was supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 6 June 2004. The agreement (as supplemented)
constituted a continuing conected transaction of the Company.
Under the said agreements, Fab 1 is required to pre-pay rent
(estimated to be RMB150,000 per month) for three years in the
sum of RMB5,400,000 (US$652,434) by installments according to
the progress of construction of the new building. The pre-payment
will be offset against the monthly rental payable by Fab 1
commencing from the date of delivery of possession of the property.
Construction and decoration of the office building was completed
in mid 2005.

The annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 December
2009 is RMB2,500,000 (US$329,082).

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB 1,800,000 (US$236,939).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

6.

Supply and Sharing of utilities, energy and waste water
treatment with Wuxi CR

Fab 1 and Wuxi CR entered into an agreement for supply and
sharing of utilities, energy and waste water treatment between Wuxi
CR and Fab 1 on 6 May 1999 which was supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 19 March 2004 for a term of twelve
years. The agreement (as supplemented) constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company. The rates are reviewed
and negotiated between the parties annually based on PRC public
rates or the current market rates and payments are made by the
Group on a monthly basis in accordance with detailed invoices
rendered by Wuxi CR.

The annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December
2009 are RMB 130,000,000 (US$17,112,243), RMB 135,000,000
(US$17,770,406) and RMB140,000,000 (US$18,428,570)

respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB98,328,197
(US$12,943,200).

BERS )

6.

RUKREEFSEFLAORR
i~ BEIR KT KERE

—mEEHERMRIERIEAALA
R - BERESKEER— NN
FHANBALGZE  THRZF
EMFE=A+NBRI AT
(REITZF) AT - KiaE R m
FEHHEBRARR -—BFEBER
5 IR REDEE R THNR
BFERASLEBLZFER - AKH
FARBESEEMBEHROFADE
iR -

HE_TTNF+_A=+—HI1t
“EFESF  FELRBAA
R #130,000,0007T (17,112,243%
L)~ AR®135,000,0007T
(17,770,406 L) R AR
140,000,000t (18,428,570% L) °

HE-_TZT+F+_-_A=+—H81I1
FE LR S5BEBEAEARE
98,328,197 (12,943,200 7T) ©

—EZELFFEHRSE ANNUAL REPORT 2007

S

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

82



#

A

R

Y
E2

RéElng

o]

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

83

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

7.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

Wafer Processing Agreement with Wuxi China Resources
Semico Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi CR Semico”)

On 1 July 2006, Fab 1 and Wuxi CR Semico, which is a subsidiary
of CR Logic, entered into an agreement for wafer processing
services provided by Fab 1 to Wuxi CR Semico, which took effective
from 17 January 2007 to 31 December 2009. The agreement

constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company.

Under the agreement, the Company agreed to provide wafer
processing services to Wuxi CR Semico at market price for different
types of products required by Wuxi CR Semico. The fee payable
by Wuxi CR Semico to the Company is calculated in accordance
with the then agreed rates having regard to the size and number

of wafers processed by the Company.

The Group continued to monitor the aggregate amount for its
continuing connected transactions and based on its internal review
and estimate of the demand for the Group’s wafer processing
services from Wuxi CR Semico. The annual caps for the three years
ending 31 December 2009 are RMB220,000,000 (US$28,959,181),
RMB230,000,000 (US$30,275,507) and RMB250,000,000
(US$32,908,160) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB111,417,994
(US$14,666,245).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

8.

Wafer Processing Agreement with Shenzhen China
Resources Semico Microelectronics Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen CR Semico”)

On 1 July 2006, Fab 1 entered into an agreement with Shenzhen
CR Semico, which is a subsidiary of CR Logic for wafer processing
services provided by Fab 1 to Shenzhen CR Semico. The
agreement took effective from 6 December 2006 to 31 December
2009, and the agreement constituted a continuing connected

transaction of the Company.

Under the agreement, the Company agreed to provide wafer
processing services to Shenzhen CR Semico at market price for
different types of products required by Shenzhen CR Semico. The
fee payable by Shenzhen CR Semico to the Company is calculated
in accordance with the then agreed rates having regard to the size

and number of wafers processed by the Company.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2009
are RMB32,000,000 (US$4,212,244), RMB40,000,000
(US$5,265,306) and RMB45,000,000 (US$5,923,469) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB4,585,912 (US$603,656).
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CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

IC packaging & testing service

Subsequent to the listing of the Company, the Group has received
orders from certain customer, an independent third party, for wafer
processing and upon their request, the Group engaged China
Resources Semiconductor Co., Ltd. (“HK Semico”), a subsidiary
of CR Logic for IC packaging and testing. In order to formalize the
arrangement, Fab 1 and HK Semico entered into an agreement
dated 1 July 2006, which took effect from 1 January 2006 to 31
December 2008. The agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company. Under the agreement, the
Group agreed to pay HK Semico at a price fixed in the agreement
which is subject to adjustment according to market price and

subject to further negotiation by both parties.

The Group continued to monitor the aggregate amount for its
continuing connected transactions and based on its internal review
and estimate of the demand for the Group’s packing and testing
services by HK Semico. The annual caps for the above transactions
for each of the two years ending 31 December 2008 is
RMB5,500,000 (US$723,980).

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction

amount for the above amounted to nil.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

10. Wafer Processing agreement with CR PowTech

The Group had been receiving orders from CR PowTech (Shanghai)
Co., Limited (“CR PowTech”), which is a subsidiary of CR Logic for
wafer processing since 2006. In order to formalize the arrangement,
Fab 1 and CR PowTech, a subsidiary of CR Logic, entered into an
agreement dated 1 July 2006, which took effect from 1 July 2006
to 30 June 2009. The agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company. Under the agreement, CR
PowTech engaged Fab 1 wafer processing for a term of three years,
which may be terminated by either party on 90 days’ written notice.
The agreement provides the basis on which wafer processing
services are to be provided by Fab 1 to CR PowTech subject to the
parties’ confirmation on the terms and conditions of each purchase

which are negotiated on a case by case basis.

The annual caps for the above transactions for the three years
ending 31 December 2009 are RMB35,500,000 (US$4,672,959),
RMB42,000,000 (US$5,528,571) and RMB50,500,000
(US$6,647,448), respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB14,099,336
(US$1,855,937).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

11.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

Wafer foundry services agreement with HK Semico

CSMC-BVI has been receiving orders from HK Semico in relation
to assistance on preparing for mass production of wafers and the
production of such wafers. In order to formalise the arrangement,
CSMC-BVI entered into wafer foundry services agreement dated
1 July 2006 and with HK Semico, which took effect from 1 July
2006 to 30 June 2009. The agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company. The pricing for production
of the wafers is to be reviewed from time to time and subject to

amendments.

The annual caps for the above transactions for the two years ending
31 December 2008 are RMB15,817,000 (US$2,082,033) and
RMB21,789,000 (US$2,868,144), respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB8,94 1,500 (US$1,176,993).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

12. Wafer foundry services agreement with InPower (Wuxi)

Fab 1 has been providing wafer processing services to InPower
(Wuxi) for mass production of wafers and the production of such
wafers since January 2007. In order to formalise the arrangement,
Fab 1 entered into a wafer foundry services agreement dated 28
March 2007 with InPower Semiconductor (Wuxi) Company Limited
(the “InPower (Wuxi)"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Logic. The agreement took effect from 29 May 2007 to 31 December
2009. The agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company. The pricing for the production of the
wafer is to be agreed by the parties each time when order is being

placed.

The annual caps for the above transactions for the 3 years ending
31 December 2009 are RMB2,000,000 (US$263,265);
RMB2,300,000 (US$302,755) and RMB3,500,000 (US$460,714),

respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to RMB961,327 (US$126,542).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

13. Wafer foundry services agreement with InPower (HK)

CSMC-BVI entered into wafer foundry services agreement dated
28 March 2007 with InPower (HK) for the provision of wafer
processing services to InPower Semiconductor Company Limited
(the “InPower (HK)”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Logic, for mass production of wafers and the production of such
wafers, which took effect from 29 May 2007 to 31 December 2009.
The agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction of
the Company. The pricing for the production of the wafer is to be

agreed by the parties each time when order is being placed.

The annual caps for the above transactions for the three years
ending 31 December 2009 are RMB14,110,000 (US$1,857,337);
RMB58,340,000 (US$7,679,448) and RMB111,180,000
(US$14,634,917), respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate transaction

amount for the above amounted to nil.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

The Board engaged the Auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of the on-going connected
transactions to assist the Board to evaluate if the on-going
connected transactions are in accordance with the requirements
of rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. The Auditor has reported the
factual findings on these procedures to the Board. The Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the on-
going connected transactions and confirmed that the on-going
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties and on arm’s length basis;

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them;

(iv) onterms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of
the shareholders as a whole; and

(v)  without exceeding the relevant cap disclosed in previous
relevant announcements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

After the amalgamation with CR Logic’s semiconductor business, which
was completed on 5 March 2008, the afore-mentioned transations, except
for consultancy agreement with Wiston Management Company, I1C
packaging & testing service provided by HK Semico, and wafter foundry
services agreement with HK Semico will not be continuing connected
transaction of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has been in compliance with
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
throughout the financial year. The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for the Group’s internal control systems and has assumed this
responsibility through formalized financial and legal procedures within

the Group, the Group’s auditors and the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of corporate governance are set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 32 to 44 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained during the year the amount of public float as required

under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business or
interest in companies that competes, or is likely to compete, either directly

or indirectly with the business of the Group.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Amalgamation of Semiconductor Business with CR Logic

On 4 December 2007, CR Logic and the Company jointly announced
the amalgamation of both companies’ semiconductor businesses under
the Group. The Group was to acquire the semiconductor businesses of
CR Logic, being all its semiconductor operations other than China
Resources Semiconductor Company Limited which operates a 4-inch
fab in Tai Po, Hong Kong, by issue of consideration shares at an
aggregate issue price equal to approximately HK$1,448.9 million,
representing the net asset value of the companies being acquired based
on the management accounts of such companies as at 30 June 2007
net of any dividend payable. As a part of the transaction, the existing
option holders of CR Logic were offered shares in the Company in

consideration for the cancellation of their share options.

On 13 February 2008, ordinary resolutions were duly passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company in relation to (i) the
acquisition of the semiconductor businesses from CR Logic by the
Company; (ii) the continuing connected transaction arising out of such
acquisition; and (iii) the allotment of CSMC shares to certain directors of
the Company or such other connected persons who are holders of share
options granted by CR Logic in respect of cancellation of their share
options, and a special resolution was also duly pased at the same meeting

in relation to the change of name of the Company.

On 5 March 2008, 3,153,640,010 shares of the Company were issued
as consideration for the aforementioned amalgamation proposal and

option cancellation.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont'd)

Joint Venture with CR Holdings

On 19 March, 2008, the Company has entered into an agreement for the
formation of a joint venture with CR Holdings under which the Company
will participate in the joint venture for the operation of the 8 inch wafer
fabrication line by holding an indirect 19% shareholding in the joint
venture company. The balance of 81% interest will be held by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CR Holdings. The total commitment under this joint
venture will be US$500 million of which the Company’s total commitment
will be US$95 million and the balance of US$405 million will be borne by
CR Holdings. The joint venture will then acquire from the Company its
entire interest in Qualibest Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned indirect
subsidiary, which has been valued at approximately US$58.44 million,
being its unaudited net asset value as at 29 February 2008 adjusted for
the market value of a site in the Wuxi Hi-Tech Development Zone plus
the shareholder’s loans of US$58.7 million up to 29 February 2008. The
joint venture will also acquire from CR Holdings its equity interest in China
Fast Limited, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of CR Holdings, at
nominal value of US$1 and the shareholder’s loan of US$200 million up
to 29 February 2008 at face value. The Group will also enter into a services
agreement with the joint venture to provide sales, marketing, purchasing
and a variety of other technical and administrative support services for
the 8 inch wafer operation upon completion of the joint venture agreement.
The joint venture agreement and the services agreement are conditional
upon the approval of independent shareholders of the Company to be

convened.
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The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte %) ¢ =R 5 E:tAITTE BRZSHEA el
& . g o8 3 i
Touche Tohmatsu who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for ~ Bf #§# & - Hi§RT - BE ERERE a8l
re-appointment. £ - @
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On behalf of the Board, REREFEY u
:
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o | — 2
A ~ S~ B
N =
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu FE
Chairman R IE F
Hong Kong, 20 March, 2008 B ZTETENF=RA=+H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS
LIMITED (FORMERLY NAMED AS CSMC TECHNOLOGIES
CORPORATION)

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CRMicro” or the “Company”,
formerly named as CSMC Technologies Corporation) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 171,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2007 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

20 March 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE—ZTZT+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Research and development
expenses

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Company

Dividend declared and paid

Earnings per share

Basic (US cents)

Diluted (US cents)
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2007 2006
US$°000 US$000
FEx FET
142,563 114,302
(104,270) (87,368)
38,293 26,934
4,761 4,965
(2,815) (3,162)
(13,530) (14,108)
(4,908) (3,100)
(706) (511)
(3,557) (3,531)
17,538 7,487
(4,064) (1,121)
13,474 6,366
0.49 0.24
0.49 0.23

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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At 31 December 2007 R=ZFZ+F+=-A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments on
land use rights

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges
Taxation

Borrowings - due within one year

Net current (liabilities) assets

Total assets less

current liabilities

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED
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Notes
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16
17

18
26

19
20

21
21

22

23

2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
FEx TFET
220,877 175,310
586 561
7,308 6,976
837 717
229,608 183,564
30,724 27,230
29,205 20,403
193 982
20,712 21,101
80,834 69,716
43,124 30,229
763 643
58,645 35,785
102,532 66,657
(21,698) 3,059
207,910 186,623




Capital and reserves
Share capital

Share premium and reserves

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - due after one year
Government grants

Long-term payable
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 171 were approved

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 March, 2008

and are signed on its behalf by:

it Chn

EF

Director

Notes

B RE

24

23
29
25
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2007 2006
US$’000 US$000
FEn TET
35,145 34,947
162,381 136,188
197,526 17151185
— 7,000
1,917 —
8,467 8,488
10,384 15,488
207,910 186,623
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

At 1 January 2006

Exchange differences recognised

directly in equity (Note a)

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and

expenses for the year

Repurchase of shares

Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payment

Share issue upon exercise of

Equity Incentive Plan

At 31 December 2006

R=B2XE-F-A

EEGTERERNEL

=8 (Mita)

A

FERAVAERXHAR

RiAEEE
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CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

RE-TTLE+-A=+—BLEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RRARAGHE AELE
Share

Share Share Merger Translation option Other  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves profits equity
Bx  ROGEE AHRE  IRRE BRERE HURE REEN  BRAE
US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
FER FTER TER FTER TER FTER TER FTER

(Note a) (Note b)

(Fiizta) (Ftith)
34,327 74,634 34518 3,294 1,171 7,107 1,953 157,004
— - — 4,906 — - — 4,906
— - — - — — 6,366 6,366
— - — 4,906 — - 6,366 11,272
(47) (137) — — — — — (184)
— - — - 2,488 - — 2,488
667 2,395 — — (2,507) — — 555
34,947 76,892 34,518 8,200 1,152 7,107 8,319 171,135

EHWMEFAERLA



At 1 January 2007

Exchange differences recognised
directly in equity (Note a)

Profit for the year

Total recognised income
for the year

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment
Share issue upon exercise of
Equity Incentive Plan
Share issue upon exercise of
Share Option Scheme
Transfer to other reserve

At 31 December 2007

Notes:

(a)  The exchange differences arose from translation of assets and liabilities of

Ro2RLRF
==k

HEETERERN
EZE (fEa)
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Attributable to equity holders of the Companies

RAARAGHE AL
Share

Share Share Merger Translation option Other  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves profits equity
ka  RGEE AHRE  GRRE BRERE HtRE RERN  BRAE
US$'000 US$/000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
FTER TER TER TER TER FER TER FER

(Note a) (Note b)

(Fizta) (Ftzth)
34,947 76,892 34518 8,200 1,152 7,107 8,319 171,135
— — — 11,794 — — — 11,794
— - — - — - 13,474 13,474
- - — 11,794 — - 13,474 25,268
— — — — 892 — — 892
170 604 — — (643) — — 131
28 83 — - (1) — — 100
- " - = — ,196 (1,196) =
35,145 77,579 34,518 19,994 1,390 8,303 20,597 197,526

the group entities in PRC into the presentation currency.

(b)  Other reserves comprise statutory surplus reserve, statutory public welfare

fund and discretionary surplus reserve of subsidiaries established in

mainland China.

Kiaz

a) THEEEBNEERABRER
EHREWSIENELEZHE

(o)  H i i # B 457 o B R BE RS A9 B
BRARMZEEAER - EEARS
REBREE -

—EZELFFEEIRE  ANNUAL REPORT 2007

g A HlE 32
e 1 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

102



.

Tae R e

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments on land use rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Costs of equity incentive plan
and share option scheme
Impairment loss (reversal of
impairment) on debtors
Write down of inventories
to net realizable value
Interest income

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Increase in creditors and

accrued charges

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED
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2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
FErx FETT
17,538 7,487
3,557 3,531
21,063 22,633
13 12

954 630
365 1,820
(786) (529)
892 2,488
208 (10)
726 2,002
(244) (339)
44,286 39,725
(4,220) (11,360)
(9,027) (246)
13,259 3,874
44,298 31,993
(4,014) (563)
40,284 31,430
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Decrease in pledged bank deposit
Interest received

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans raised
Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowings
Repurchase of shares

Proceeds from issue of new shares

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THEYEAR
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THEYEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash
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2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
SEE Tt
(55,452) (31,846)
(806) (560)
1,314 683
789 HE
244 339
(53,911) (31,384)
68,641 47,073
(54,062) (46,953)
(2,532) (2,992)
— (184)

231 o
12,278 (3,056)
(1,349) (3,010)
21,101 24,778
960 (667)
20,712 21,101
20,712 21,101
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REMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

China Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CRMicro” or the
“Company”, formerly named as CSMC Technologies Corporation)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) manufacture and sell 6 inch wafer
and related products. The Group’s production facilities are located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman
Island and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Its parent is China Resources Logic Limited (“CR
Logic”) (incorporated in Bermuda) and its ultimate holding
company is China Resources National Corp. (“CRNC”), a company
established in the People’s Republic of China. The addresses of
the registered office of the Company is Scotia Centre, P.O. Box
2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West
Indies and the principal place of business is 14 Liangxi Road, Wuxi,
Jiangsu, 214061, China.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

At 31 December 2007, the Group has net current liabilities of
US$21,698,000. Taking into account the financial resources
available to the Group, including internally generated funds and
the available banking facilities, the Group has sufficient working
capital for its present requirements for the next 12 months from the
balance sheet date. Accordingly, the financial statements has been

prepared on a going concern basis.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s

financial year beginning 1 January 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC) - Int 7

Capital Disclosures

Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

7B P33T RARE AT B B B
% 35 4 % B

RAEE  AEEEXERAATH
BEGHMAG ([BAEEMA
) BMEOHER - BRI R
([FHEEHBHREEL]) FHEEH
BHREEIERAEER _ZTZL
F-A—HRABNMBFRELEN -

BRGTERNE 15 (D) BARE

Financial Instruments: Disclosures &AM BERE%ERIZE 7 5%

&% (BRUBRERBZES)
—2BE 7%

TMIE: KB

EREEEERNE 295
[BERERREER RS
METHRE | E5E

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 a5 (HRUBREREZES) BAUBHREEL
-RBESR F2HHEE
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded % (HRHMBRERBEZES) BEMTARERE
Derivatives —ZEBZEIR THETA
HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting &% (BREBREREEEY) FHUBRERAE
and Impairment —ZEFE105%

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior

period adjustment has been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirement under HKAS 1
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information
presented in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has
been removed and the relevant comparative information based
on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has

been presented for the first time in the current year.

Ry Lt ¥ BB MBS mE LR E R
AR ERAPHBESTHENE
BV BARRLBEBBEATLE - Fiit
BAELBEHEFE -

AEEDEPEAE LSS ERE
St (RERD) REBE BV B RELERET
HHRBERTE - L—FERERE
SR EREIHE2IMETEHE
Bl MAFEERZINNRERE
SEHERIFE 1R (RIER]) KRB
BELRNETRNEBELBER -

—EZELFFEHRSE ANNUAL REPORT 2007

REMBHRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

106



3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

REMBHRMEE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

@%%J&mﬂJE%M
745 45 2 8

AEBHRRERBATEEME

0 standards or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet i R A A T E] RAB ET B B3k

% effective. o

£

CE HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of BESTAERE 15 EHRYB#REK

§ Financial Statements' (&4&3T)

% HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs' B GRS 23 57 EERA

@ (&E7T)

é HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’ BRI IwEERE 8% REHE

% HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury a5 (ERMBREREZES) BASUBREEANE2R

bt Share Transactions? -REBENR —EELBERRHRS?

g HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements® &4 (BIR#BmERELZEE) W TRELHS

i —ZEE 125

> HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes* &5 (BRUBREREZEY) XPAWE!

—RBF135%
HK(FRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a 5% (BRHBRERBEES) BHEEAZ19%

Defined Benefit Asset, —RBE14% —ERRMNEENRE -
Minimum Funding Requirements RIERFHRTE R
and their Interaction? HAR @RS

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 !

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007 2
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 g
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008 4

The management is assessing the impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group upon application of these standards

or interpretations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefit from its activities.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Tax refund is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the

refund is established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress)
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, ranging from zero to 10%, using the

straight-line method, as follows:

Leasehold improvement HEEERRETE
Furniture and fixtures REREE
Machinery HEES

Facility equipment FHEERE

Motor vehicles B
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property, plant and equipment, commences when

the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. The costs of prepaid lease
payments on land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis

over the contractual period of the land use rights.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalized on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five to eight years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the
production of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group, and that will probably generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are
recognized as intangible assets. Costs include the employee
costs incurred as a result of developing software and an

appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Technology knowhow

Acquired technology knowhow is initially recognised at cost.
Where payment is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its
cost is the cash price equivalent. Technology knowhow has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of technology knowhow over

their estimated useful lives of twelve years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets

is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related to
depreciable assets are presented as deferred income and are
released to income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants related
to expense items are recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the consolidated income statement and

are reported separately as ‘other income’.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. The costs
of finished goods and work in progress comprise raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less applicable selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and

financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including debtors, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the

expected life, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivable are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Loans and receivables are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future

cash flows of the loans and receivable have been impacted.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in settlement of receivables; or

o it becoming probable that the debtors will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For debtors, they are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities, including creditors, borrowings and long-term
payable, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds receivable net of direct issued costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as Lessee

Rental payable under operating leases is charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease term. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted

for as operating leases.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the subsidiaries of the Company in the
PRC is Renminbi. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in the currency of US dollars because the management
considers US dollars are more appropriate in evaluating and

controlling the performance of their business.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Impairment losses of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002 and
vested on or after 1 January 2005.

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to be
held in share options reserve.

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 January 2005.

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the consolidated financial statements until such time as the options
are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in respect of the value of options granted. Upon
the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the
nominal value of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted
from the register of outstanding options.

FESTTEE ®)

URHBXNNRS
LURBZZER O HIIX S

R-FFE_F+-—AtHERTIE
RAR-_ZFZERF—HF—HEKZE
5B B AE

P AR 75 B9 X SF B T 4R P 1% H BB A
BRABELBEHNAFEERE @ LA
HERZENFBHEIER - AL AE
FEIE Mg s (R ©

REFZEER  AEESETEHTRY
Al FATEMRIESE T - E1B
mREREREEET (WME) WE
& UHBBRERGEREAE -

REBREETER - TR ERE
R RSN EESERERD G
B - ZEBBRENEERHRKKE
HRER B DARETE - LR
BREFETERNSESEED
AN

—EFE—F—A+HZEERT
EEAR —_ZETTEHRF—H—H#E
BB iE

EEEREHBRERETEZA B
REBRENM BT BT ENGS
B SRRLE  BYEBELRA WS
AREREBERENEERARAX
Hoe RITHEBRER - AlbE &7
B R 15 T 12 IR £ T B 50 BR R RE AMAR
K- mMEBRITEEBLERG EER

ZROTERAERMDEE - REITHE
HEARI RS SHE ERRE - 08
8 R 17 150 s AR 4 & = 11t AP B o

—EZELFFEEIRE  ANNUAL REPORT 2007

RE BB HRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

122



REMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

123

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future
in preparing accounting estimates. The resulting accounting
estimates may not be equal to the actual results. The key estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment. The estimated useful lives are based on the expected
lifespan of those property, plant and equipment. The useful lives
of property, plant and equipment could change significantly as a
result of technical obsolescence. When the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment due to the change of commercial
and technological environment are different from their estimated
useful lives, such difference will impact the deprecation charges

and the amounts of assets written down for future periods.

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances
are applied to inventories where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than
the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories
requires the use of judgment and estimates on the conditions and

usefulness of the inventories.
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CAPTIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings. The Group also monitors the current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient working capital and
adequate committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity
requirement, and adjust the Group’s capital structure by considering

the cost of capital and the associated risk with each class of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in Note 23, net of bank balances and
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,

comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include debtors, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, creditors, borrowings and
long-term payable. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

The risk arising from the Group’s financial instruments are mainly
market risk (foreign currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk),
liquidity risk and credit risk. The directors review policies for

managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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= 7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 7.
e

?‘; Categories of financial instruments

=

4o

ﬂ;:

(9]

'—

&

=

= Financial assets SREE

2 Loans and receivables (including B MEWERZ (BIEEYW
% detors,pledged bank deposits, BRFC - EIRRITIFRUA R
& and bank balances and cash) IRITEEFRIRE)

@

k2 il

= Financial liabilities SHREE

§ Amortised cost (including IR (BIEENERR
§ creditors, bank borrowings SRITE R R R EBENFR)
% and long term payable)

7

5

=z

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have sales and purchases
transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures
to exchange rate fluctuation arises. The Group matches its assets

and liabilities in the same currency as far as possible.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in foreign currency, that is currency other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities at

balance sheet date are as follow:

Assets EE
United States dollars e
Liabilities =L
United States dollars eIV
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The respective subsidiaries are mainly exposed to currency

fluctuation of United States dollars.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in Renminbi, the functional currency of the relevant
subsidiaries, against US dollars. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in
profit for the year where Renminbi strengthens 5% against the
relevant foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of Renminbi
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal but opposite
impact on the profit for the year and the balances below would be

negative.

US dollars e

FREE A

Profit for the year

€I AR @m
S BEE JE e (40)

NG R S s § )
B R ©

SHE BB E 5 4T
TRANARNEEEARR (BN B
REMMEER) AXTELAHT
BKERNBREE - HRELNERRE
ARSI AINESIEM B IR R
W F 4L IR5 % B IE R B B HL [
i MARBABRRING LF56% -
A0 N IE SRR F R AIE A0 o i
AREAEHEEE THE% - Y
FEGRNELRFERARNTZE
BUTHEBRBREE -

2007 2006
Us$’000 US$'000
FXr FTET
1,460 1,031
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Cash flow interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows of the
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR, and People’s Bank of
China lending rate arising from the Group’s floating rate borrowings
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi (see Note 23 for details
of these borrowings). The management monitors and manages its

exposure to fluctuation in interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for the borrowings at the balance sheet
date which carry interest at floating rates: The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of the borrowings outstanding at the balance

sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.

At the balance sheet date, if LIBOR and People’s Bank of China
lending rate had been increased by 200 basis points and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit would decrease
by approximately US$844,000 for the year ended 31 December
2007(2006: US$644,000). If LIBOR and People’s Bank of China
lending rate had been decreased by 200 basis points, there would

be equal but opposite impact on the profit for the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheets and the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to the financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in
Note 34.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has policies in place
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out research
on the creditability of the new customer and assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed when necessary.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date on a monthly
basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with good credit standing.

Other than concentration of credit risk on bank deposits, which
are deposited with several banks with good credit ratings, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties. Other than the subsidiaries of
CR Logic, the parent company, who represents 17% (2006:21%)
of the total balance of trade debtors, there is no customers with
balance of trade debtors more than 5% of the total balance of
trade debtors.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
board of directors which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the mangaement of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
As at 31 December 2007, the Group has available unutilised
overdraft and short-term bank loan facilities of approximately
US$21,881,000 (2006: US$120,544,000) and US$19,632,000
(2006: US$9,037,000) respectively.

The financial assets, mainly bank balances and cash and debtors,
have maturity of O to 90 days.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 7. TRTH @w -
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBESRER @) %
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRAMAEIAEEFEITEESRE i
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been BN TEHMNEPE - TRDE &
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial RAEBREEESRHABNRE E
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be HEMRTEREREMAER © T %
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash REEMNERAEMBESRE ° =
flows. g
Total <ZE
0-180 181-365 1-2 2-3 Over  undiscounted "Q"
days days years years 3years cash flows Carrying %
02 1812 12 VES 3 AfERS amounts a
1808 2667 2% 3% WE o EEEN  FEG 2
US$000 US$000 US§000 US000 US§000 US§000 US§000 ;
o A T T o
As at 31 Decerber 2007 i 23 {0
+-A=t-H >
Non-interest bearing %8
Creditors AL 31,825 - - - - 31,825 31825
Long-term payable REEAER 603 603 12717 12717 8147 11907 9,209

Variable interest rate instruments ~ ZHF|XTE

Borrowings faa 43807 16,231 = = = 60,038 58,645
76,235 16,834 1211 121 8147 103,770 99679
As at 31 December 2006 RZEENF
+-A=t-A
Non-interest bearing 28
Creditors B 20551 = — — = 20551 20551
Long-term payable REEAER 484 484 1,194 1,194 8822 12,178 9132

Variable interest rate instruments ~~ FHF|EXTE
Borrowings &3 18,077 19,206 7383 — — 44,665 42,785

3112 19,689 8,577 1,194 8,822 771,39 72,468

—ZTEEFERSE  ANNUAL REPORT 2007 130



REMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

131

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2007 and 2006, it was not probable that the
counterparty to the financial guarantee contract will claim under
the contract. Consequently, the carrying amount of financial
guarantee contract of US$481,000 (2006: US$515,000) has not

been presented above.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised
cost are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing

models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Revenue represents revenue arising from sale of 6 inch wafer, and
related products, net of discounts and sales related taxes, for the

year.

Geographical segment

The Group’s primary format for reporting segment information is
geographical segment as determined by location of its assets. The
Group is operating in mainland China and significant assets,

liabilities and capital expenditures are located in mainland China.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont'd)

The analysis by geographical segments by location of customers

is as follows:

Revenue

Mainland China

Asia, other than the
mainland China

United States

Europe

Business segment

The Group has only one business segment which is the

BA
B AR

R EIARE S
THEE
£

B

manufacturing of 6-inch wafer and related products.

8. WMARZTEESR @

RIEE S 12585 10 5 B A7
mT -

2007 2006

US$’000 US$000

FXx TET

101, 350 77,413

25,976 21,989

11,737 10,852

3,500 4,048

142,563 114,302
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e 9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfKA

e

5

o4 2007 2006

)

@ US$°000 US$'000

iy FER FEx

2

< Included in other income are: ETAHMMARIEE & -

@

'i 4= S

2 Interest on bank deposits HRITIF RN S 244 339

S Tax refund for re-investment of B A RFEBE®RE

<

z profit distributed by subsidiaries HOR R 1,226 2,145

g Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BERRE

% plant and equipment il 786 529

% Net foreign exchange gain b e 5 R 1,343 1,011

0

T

o 10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAE B A

:

z 2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000

x5 F=Ex

Interest on bank borrowings wholly ZBRAFAEIEE

repayable within five years HISRTT 8 SR & 3,020 3,002

Imputed interest expense on REAE BRI FERT
long-term payable FEZH 537 529
3,557 3,531
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EER{EEEM £

=
L
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEEE g
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors for ENSENSESBRE_STLF i
the year ended 31 December 2007 were set out below: +—A=+t—BIFENHEHT &

s

Employer's Compensation

Other ~ contribution ~for loss of

benefits  to pension office as
Discretionary  Inducement (Note 1) scheme director Total
Notes Fees Salary  bonuses fees  RftRR EIEze EZ  emoluments
(i ne fie KiERL nEmE (Hrit1) EfEH EREE Hewy

USS000  USP0OD  USS000  USSO00  USFODD  USSOOO  USSOD LSS0
T7 TEL T Tn T Tin TEL Tin

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Executive directors: HTES:

Dr. Peter CHEN Chengyu ~ BIEFEL 5 163 - 40 2 - - 218
Mr. Robert LEE Naii EhERE 2 13 194 - 38 15 — — 260
Mr. Ehis DENG Meosong ~ HEIAE4 3 3 147 - 3 128 = = 343

Non-executive directors:  F&##7ES :

Mr. ZHU Jinkun KemEE 4 = = = = = — 4
Mr. WANG Guoping TETEE 4 - - - - - = 4
Wi Ken ONG Thiam Kin THRREE 4 - - - - - - 4
M. YU Yu v 4 - - - - - - 4
M. CHEN Nanxiang REMEE 4 - - - - - = 4
Mrs. Kum Loon OON 53 e 8 - - - - - = %
Mr. Mark HSUE Chi Nan TEERE 26 = = = = = — 26
Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze
YBEMA %L 32 = = = = = - 32
205 504 - 13 165 - — 987
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. 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EER{EEME @

K (Cont'd)

b

iﬁ (a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) EEM<E 40

i)

& The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors for ENSENSEESFHE_SZF

2 the year ended 31 December 2006 were set out below: TZTA=+—BHLEFENHESHT

2 T :

B

2 Employer's Compensation

% Other  contribution  for loss of

% benefits  to pension office as

T Discretionary  Inducement (Note 1) scheme director Total

E Notes Fees Salary  bonuses fees  HitREA EXEZE EZ  emoluments

g s He ¢ BEEL  mEMe (W) HEER  BERR  #esE

§ US§000 US§000 US§1000 US§000 US$000 US§000 US$000 US§000

(E) TEr TER TEm TER TER TER TER TER

o

g Executive directors: ) £

2 Dr. Peter CHEN Chengyu ~ REFEL 100 66 = 2% 163 - = 353
r. Robert LEE Naii EiE L 2 69 136 - 3 122 - - 38
Mr. TSAI Nein Nan BRmRs 4 6 113 - 2 138 - - 21

Non-executive directors:  F&#77ES :

Mr. ZHU Jinkun Rk 5 1 - - - - - = 1
Mr. WANG Guoping TETEE 5 1 - - - - - - 1
MrKenONG ThiamKin ~ TFiRs4 9 - - - - - - 9
M YU Yu ATRE 8 - - - - - - 8
Dr. CHEN Nan-xiang AL 8 - — - — - — 8
Mr. Paul P. WANG ThnkE 4 6 — — — — — — 6
Mrs. Kum Loon OON REERT % - - - - - = 2%
Mr. Mark HSUE Chi Nan FEERE 26 = = = = = - 26
M. Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze
YBEMA &4 3 = = = = = = 3
29 315 — 79 423 — - 1,112
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

Notes:

(1)  Other benefits include share-based payment, housing and

other allowances.

(2)  The director was resigned on 1 July 2007.

(38) The director was appointed on 1 July 2007.

(4)  The directors were resigned on 1 September 2006.

(5)  The directors were appointed on 1 September 2006.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, none of the
directors waived any emoluments or has agreed to waive

any emoluments (2006: None).
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(a) EEM < @

GEE

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

H 18 M 235 E R # T
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R-ZZLFLH—HEHE
MESE -
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MES -
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MESE -
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% 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEREEME @)

K (Cont'd)

5

i

i (b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME

% The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in AEEFALUGEHFALE

E the Group for the year include three (2006: three) directors B (ZEZTRF: =) &

% (including the executives director who ceased to be an E(BRERFRATEHELH

;E, executive director during the year) whose emoluments are TEEMAL) EHMeER

% reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments EX 250D T AR

g payable to the remaining two (2006: two) individuals during FAERSBTMUAL(ZE

é the year were as follows: TRE M) MemT -

=

5 2007 2006

=z

S US$°000 US$'000

£ FER FER

»

UBJ Basic salaries and allowances ~ EA¥& K28 47 251

- Bonuses TEAL 83 49
Consultancy fee BMER 42 96

596 396

The emoluments were within the following bands: e AW TEM:

Number of employees

EE®A
2007 2006
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 T £ 2,000,000 77T
(equivalent to approximately (FEE P49 128,200 T
US$128,200 to US$256,400) % 256,400 % 7T) 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 77t 2 3,000,000 77T
(equivalent to approximately (FEE P4 256,400 £ TE
US$256,400 to US$384,615) 384,615 3%7T) 1 —
2 2
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12. TAXATION

The tax charge comprises: HIES HBE -
Current taxation BNEATHIE

Hong Kong B

PRC Enterprise Income Tax A Bl FTISHL

Deferred taxation (Note 26) RIETREIE (FfI5E 26)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2007. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the year
ended 31 December 2006 as the Group did not generate any

assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during that year.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is calculated based on the
applicable tax rates on assessable profits. Certain subsidiaries
operating in the PRC which are regarded as encouraged
technology intensive foreign investment enterprises with foreign
investment in excess of US$30,000,000 have been granted tax
concessions by tax authorities and are entitled to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at preferential rate of 15% in 2007. In 2006, a subsidiary

of the Company was also further entitled to a 50% reduction in EIT.

12. Bi1E

2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
SR FETT
91 H
4,041 1,459
(68) (338)
4,064 1,121

BEENERERBE_ZTLF+-
A=t—BLEFENMGFERBE
ME17 6% E - ARAERER L5
M &R B B & & (E A B R BE
A MYBERBE_TTRF+
A=+t—BLEFENFTENSHE
B -

REREMEH ([REMERI) T
RERNNERTEAE - &5 F
EHRBGEENNB AR ARERR
3,000 2% 7T 1) 3 5% B 43 1l 2% &= AU A
BRECE  EHRBERKTHK
BE AR _ZETE+FZEHI5%H
PRECEMSHEENRE - RN
TRF - AREl—RWEBRRIINE
— S ZHE0%EMBRRE -
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12. TAXATION (Cont'd)

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China promulgated
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President of the People’s
Republic of China. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the
PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations will unify the tax rate to 25%
from 1 January 2008.

With effect from 1 January 2008, if the subsidiaries are qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprise (under the new PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law), the subsidiaries will be entitled a rate
of 15%.

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 26.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

12. BLE (@)

RZZBEZEF=A+H ' BEA
REMBEMCREARLEMBE -2
Frs &R ([FBA]) (REARHK
MBEFLE63N) c RZEZLF
+ZARA - R E TG
SEE ARSI o FBUE R E M &G
B—MEE2% BT N\F—
B—BER -

BT N\F—A—B& HWKB
RABBEHHEFEERKBSH
Bt AIZERBARKESR
15% %K o
BT BN FEH M 26 -

FREBIES Al AR A Was R ABR

taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: BADSE M E R
2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
SFESE FEx
Profit before taxation B AT & A 17,538 7,487
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 15% 15% HYE ARG E AT 2,631 1,123
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  TEEATIIE B AR A
tax purpose ARG E 35 17
Tax effect of income not TEERIIA B HY AR
taxable for tax purpose WA BT 52 (292) (323)
Tax effect of tax losses not RICHER ML IBESIERY
recognised Hgse 2 2,667 1,424
Utilisation of tax losses previously B) A LARI RS HER A
not recognised TRIAEE 47) (187)
Increase in deferred tax liability resulting — FiE A R 12 1B £
from an increase in applicable tax rate RIETIE & EIE — (281)
Tax effect of 50% relief on income tax 50% FTSBim e 2 — (781)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries &MIBAREANEH RN E (909) 131
Others Hih (21) (2)
Tax charge for the year FEBEZH 4,064 1,121

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7




13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FE&A -
#
2007 2006 o
=
US$’000 US$'000 4o
FER FEx .
=
Profit for the year has been arrived at after 0K (5t A) LARIER %
charging (crediting): BREBWEERT g
4
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE 2 223 220 ‘:;E
=
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BB MERETE é
equipment 21,063 22,633 é_‘
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments -3 {& FAAETE (A & # § §
on land use rights 13 12 §
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 954 630 %
Staff costs BEKA é
Directors’ emoluments EE1kcn 987 1,112 'g
Other staff Hitfg g
— Salaries and other benefits — e MEMET 19,976 12,722
— Retirement benefits scheme —RRERETE
contribution R 2,163 1,310
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  #1% - = K& ER
property, plant and equipment EERREEIE 365 1,820
Impairment losses on (reversal of FEW AR FORE R 18
impairment) on debtors (BEE518) 208 (10)
Operating lease rental paid in respect of ~ FHAEMEB Y 1,873 1,828
rental premises CERERS
Write down of inventories to net FEMRZE
realisable value AIEERE 726 2,002
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. R E

EEXETEBRNBEEZE_TTLFT
“RA=T-BHLEFENERE (ZET

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2007 (2006:Nil)

REMBHRMEE
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15.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable

to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the

following data:

NI ) o

15. SR B F|

AAREBEFEABRGERER
NEFRNTER TIIBIEE

2007 2006
US$°000 US$'000
FTEx F=Ex
Earnings ZF|
Earnings for the purpose of basic and RERERREERF
diluted earnings per share i = K &7 13,474 6,366
Number of shares RGEE ’000 '000
Weighted average number of ordinary RERERBFMEH
shares for the purpose of basic I AR hnAE 192K
earnings per share 2,731,704 2,701,158
Effect of dilutive potential TaErEe g
ordinary shares:
Share options — Equity Incentive Plan B RGHE — AP € Rh =T 2 30,822 36,454
Share options — Share Option Scheme  B&PSHE — BE P HE T2 5,627 1,099
Weighted average number of ordinary REREERFMSH
shares for the purpose of diluted el il RS
earnings per share 2,768,153 2,738,711

EMUBTERA T




16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 1% - BRERRKRE

Leasehold Fumniture
improvements and Facility Motor  Construction
HEEE fixtures  Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
¥RIE HKERKE BE  RER "E ERIE @zt
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000
Tén  TER TR TER TER TER TR
2006 “TTRE
AT COST BRAE
At 1 January 2006 RZZTRE
==& 1,951 4,371 140,495 14,553 598 46,683 208,651
Exchange adjustments (X% 86 139 4,865 492 20 2,460 8,062
Additions AE — 884 84 54 173 34,558 36,510
Disposals e - (405) (28) - (53) - (486)
Transfers between PSR
categories 273 123 8,836 4,876 84 (14,192) —
At31December 2006  R=TT/AF
T=EE—E 2,310 5112 155,009 19,975 822 69,509 252,737
DEPRECIATIONAND  MTERFIE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2006 RZZTRE
—R-A (148) (1,380) (45,798) (3,524) (275) — (51,125)
Exchange adjustments  [& J:8% (35) (45) (1969) (121) (11) = (2,181)
Provided for the year ~ FEEfE (448) (660) (19,696) (1,731) (98) = (22,633)
Eliminated on disposals 7 H &R - 287 12 - 33 - 332
Impairment loss ERERER
recognised in the WRESE
income statement — — (1,820) — — — (1,820)
At31December 2006  HZZTTAE
+ZA=+-H (631) (1,798) (69,271) (5,376) (351) — (77,427)
CARRYINGVALUES ~ &AE
At31December 2006  HZZTTAE
+ZA=t-H 1,679 3314 85,738 14,599 471 69,509 175,310
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

2007
AT COST
At 1 January 2007

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Transfers between
categories

At 31 December 2007

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2007

Exchange adjustments
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Impairment loss
recognised in the
income statement

At 31 December 2007

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2007

16. 1% - BMEKRE @)

Leasehold Furniture
improvements and Facility Motor Construction
HEgEE fixtures  Machinery equipment  vehicles in progress Total
¥RIB HEREE BE  RERE RE  EBIR @it
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
“ERLEF
REAE
R-BBLE
—R-H 2,310 5,112 155,009 19,975 822 69,509 252,737
ErAE 138 352 10,664 1,421 57 4,790 17,422
nE 313 247 10,170 54 10 44,658 55,452
HE - (121) (811) - - - (932)
PEEER
- 1,001 30,869 2,210 43 (34,123) -
i3
TZA=t-H 2,761 6,591 205,901 23,660 932 84,834 324,679
RERAE
R-BBLE
—-R-H (631) (1,798) (69,271) (5,376) (351) - (77,427)
ErAE (22) (124) (3,303) (1,878) (24) - (5,351)
FERE (561) (1,028) (16,938) (2421) (115) - (21,063)
R SR - 89 315 - - - 404
BRI RRER
WRESE
- - (365) - - - (365)
RZZ2BLE
+ZB=+-H (1,214) (2,861) (89,562) (9,675) (490) - (103,802)
REE
R-BBLE
+ZA=1-H 1,547 3,730 116,339 13,985 442 84,834 220,877

EHWMEFAERLA



17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE 17. Tih{F ARESES u
RIGHTS e
b
ES
2007 2006 =
o
US$’000 US$'000
o
SEP FET =
=
@
At beginning of year F4) 561 554 %
Amortisation of prepaid b FAAETE R FE & HE 5 %
lease payment on land g
use rights (13) (12) 5
i}
Exchange adjustments b AR 38 19 <
3
At end of year F 586 561 5
o
T
o
The Group's prepaid lease payments on land use rights comprise AEEN T EREENEEBE s
L
leasehold land in the mainland China under medium-term lease. REBERENFBAENRENEE 'g
T o
The Group’s interests in land use rights have been pledged to REBEEHR T FERAENERE
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group. o AERAEEE TRITEE -
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& 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B &EE
#
5 Technology Computer
ié knowhow software Total
Eg 107 S0 e 4 Mt
o US$’000 US$°000 US$’000
é SREST SHEST FEx
= COST PR
7 At 1 January 2006 N-ZEEXFE—H—H — 2,770 2,770
S Exchange adjustments b AR 109 106 215
§ Additions RNE 4,468 560 5,028
(e
E At 31 December 2006 RZEERF+ZA=1+—H 4,577 3,436 8,013
a
2 AMORTISATION i
5 At 1 January 2006 R-ETXFE—HF—H — (379) (379)
a Exchange adjustments bE 0 = (4) (24) (28)
'_
o Charge for the year FEZH (187) (443) (630)
(9]
L
g At 31 December 2006 RZZEZERF+=RA=+—A1H (191) (846) (1,037)
CARRYING VALUES BRTAEE
At 31 December 2006 RZZEZERF+=A=+—H 4,386 2,590 6,976
COST ﬁﬁzzlx
At 1 January 2007 R=TZETtF—A—H 4,577 3,436 8,013
Exchange adjustments M 5, B 319 237 556
Additions B — 806 806
At 31 December 2007 R-EZELHF+=-A=+—8 4,896 4,479 9,375
AMORTISATION %&fﬁ
At 1 January 2007 RZEE+F—H—H (191) (846) (1,037)
Exchange adjustments e H (17) (59) (76)
Charge for the year FEIH (408) (546) (954)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZtF+=-A=+—H (616) (1,451) (2,067)
CARRYING VALUES @EEE
At 31 December 2007 RZEZLF+ZA=+—H 4,280 3,028 7,308
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Contd) 18. BEEEE ® i
L
Technology knowhow comprises the acquired rights to use certain RITMESEE AN LRSS g
technologies for the manufacturing of wafer products. The E o BRI PR RE A o AR BT BRI 0 B &
_ . <
amortization period adopted for licensed technology knowhow is FAMNBHEPAAT=F - gtu
12 years. 2
&

=

19. INVENTORIES 19. #E 5
7p]

2

2007 2006 ©

<

=z

US$'000 US$000 B

TR FET 5

o,

Raw materials R HL 7,500 6,966 %
Work-in-progress ERm 9,888 10,372 bt
T

Finished goods BIRK AR 6,026 3,808 o
'_

Spare parts ey 7,310 6,084 @
2

30,724 27,230
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The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 0 to 90

REMBHRMEE

days to its trade customers. The aged analysis of debtors, including
notes receivable with maturity period of 180 days, net of allowance
for doubtful debts, is as follows:

0-60 days 0-60 X
61-90 days 61-90 X
91-180 days 91-180 &
Over 180 days 180 KA E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Included in debtors was US$3,729,000 (2006: US$3,298,000) due
from subsidiaries of China Resources Logic Limited, the parent of
the Group, arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary
course of business of the Group. These amounts are unsecured,
interest free and repayable within the credit periods similar to those
offered by the Group to its major customers.
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20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20.

BWERMR - RERBAMS K
8

AEE-RETET-OXNEE
Hi o BER180ME BN EKRER 2
FEWBR R OB A RERBE1R) MBRER
DITEAT -

2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
FER FET
17,630 13,759
1,118 1,527
3,425 215
196 =
22,369 15,501

FEUR BR B 53,729,000k 7T (=T
7N 1 3,298,000 7T) AAREE R H
BEBBREBTFAETHRSIMESE
ZEWASERGAREBHERER
AEIKM B A RIMRIE - ZERE
TEER - B REARKNEERH
FTERXRFRENEUEERRNE
%o



20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont'd)

Included in the Group's debtors are debtors with a carrying amount
of US$2,057,000 (2006: US$1,637,000) which denominated in US
(that is the currency other than the functional currencies of the

respective group entities.)

Ageing of debtors which are past due but not impaired

0-60 days 0-60 %
61-90 days 61-90 %
91-180 days 91-180 &

Over 180 days BiE 180 X

The Group has not provided impairment as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Other debtors that are neither past due nor impaired have been
subsequently settled or have active business relationship with the
Group.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with balance of US$510,000 (2006:
US$436,000) which have either been placed under liquidation or
have been long outstanding without settlement nor having any
business relationship with the Group. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.

20.
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BWERMR - RERAS K

(435
IE (A=)

AEENERERBREREAER
2,057,000 L (ZEZTRF :
1,637,000 7T) B EUAR TR © AT
REM (IS EEEEENIEEE
AN EH) o

B HHE AR BB # 8 U R SRR iR

2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
TER FTXT
425 512

318 215

196 —

939 727

HRNEEEXBEEAEHAZEN
BENRAA K E - HAEEL R
ZERKIFLEE -  NEEALKRH
ZERBBT A EMERR

H R 8 HI SR E oY B R K E R
HRENSKBEASEEEERER
BAR

REEBEBEA /510,000 7T
(ZZT/NF : 436,000%7T) © B
IINEREEXIRBEALKE
B EAREENEXBRBRENER
MEEKE SER - NEEBIW AR
ZEEBFAEEAERR -
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= 20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20. EWER - BE REMRK
e (Cont'd) I8 (&)

b

i N

= Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts R EEF)

<

o 2007 2006
7

= US$’000 US$'000
= FER FERT
2

e Balance at beginning of the year FAEERR 436 446
<

z Exchange adjustments b i 17 —
g Amounts written off as uncollectible WiHAREN SR (151) —
% Impairment losses recognised on receivables i & U 1 I8 8 0] 46 (B 5 18 208 —
% Impairment losses reversed B EREEE — (10)
-

= 510 436
o

[9p]

i

o)

=z

21. BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 21. #1748 BHEWETHE

%

Bank balances and pledged bank deposits carry interest at market IRITEBR R BERBITERIRT S
rates ranging from 0.72% to 1.53%. MENF0.72EZE1.53EF L °
Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks to EEBRITEFIEEIRTRITAE
secure bank facilities granted to the Group. RETAEENRTHE o
Included in the Group’s bank balances are bank balances with a REBNBRTEAKEEEREE
carrying amount of US$ 6,480,000 (2006: US$ 5,983,000) which 6,480,000E L (ZEZT R F :
are denominated in US dollars (that is the currency other than the 5,983,000370) MISR1TAE &R + LAZETT
functional currencies of the respective group entities). BEMASESEEENEES

AN B ) -
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22. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

The aged analysis of creditors, including notes payable, which

are included in creditors and accrued charges is as follows:

0-60 days 0-60 %
61-90 days 61-90 X
91-180 days 91-180 &
Over 180 days 180 XA E

Included in trade creditors was US$6,252,000 (2006:
US$1,271,000) due to subsidiaries of China Resources Logic
Limited, the parent of the Group, arising from transactions carried
out in the ordinary course of business of the Group. These amounts
are unsecured, interest free and repayable within the credit periods

similar to those offered by the Group by its major suppliers.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days. The

notes payable have maturity period of 180 days.

Included in the Group’s creditors are creditors with a carrying
amount of US$8,487,000 (2006: US$4,520,000) which denominated
in US dollars (that is the currency other than the functional

currencies of the respective group entities).

22.
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BARRRETEH

SPARKNERREE E RO ENER
H(BREENZER) HRE TN
T ¢

2007 2006
Us$’000 US$'000
FTXRr TET
22,826 18,977
3,226 393
5,075 24
698 1,157
31,825 20,551

FEH & 5 BR 51 856,252,000 7T (=
TN ¢ 1,271,000 T) BAEE
RAEEBBRIEEREAREE
BRAERBRERAANNER
AIMRIE - ZERBENERR - 2
EREARTEE X ZHERIEHRD
BUEEBRRNER -

BEAMAFHAEEHR60X - &
NEZN180RAEH -

AEENENEXREEEDAE
8,487,000 L (ZEZT RF :
4,520,000 7T) B FETBR K - ASETT
REM (B ESEEENINEEYE
AN EHE) o
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R

23. BORROWINGS 23. &8 &

e

o 2007 2006

o US$'000 US$'000

. FER FEx

2

% Secured bank loans BFIRITER 9,800 15,306

% Unsecured bank loans HIKIRIRTTE R 48,845 27,479

<

2 58,645 42,785

§ Less: Amount due within one year BB E {E EHT—%F

% shown under current liabilities AEER R R (58,645) (35,785)

3 \

Z Amount due after one year shown ERBEGBEE N —F&

; as non-current liabilities E|EARYFRIE — 7,000

£

o

% The balances of the bank loans comprises of LIBOR plus margin IRITERE AR B RBUERTTR ER

- bank borrowing, People’s Bank of China lending rate plus margin BEEMERITEE ‘:F‘ ARBRTT
and fixed interest rate bank loans amounting to US$ 41,368,000 EEFEBINBIEITEREEEF
(2006: US$ 25,537,000), US$ 8,276,000 (2006: US$10,248,000) KIRITE - 9 Bl3E41,368,0005 T

—~

and US$ 9,001,000 (2006: US$ 7,000,000) respectively, with —ZEENF : 25,637,000E7T) ¢

effective interest rate of 5.74% (2006: 6.14%) per annum. 8,276,000 T (=TT XN F :
10,248,0003%7T) % 9,001,000 7T
(ZZ T4 : 7,000,000 7T) * &
RERAELTAE (ZETNF 1 6.14
= e
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23. BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in the currency other
than the functional currencies of the respective group entities are

set out below:

United States Dollars =

Included in the borrowings was a US$2,800,000 short term loan
secured by machineries and facility equipment with an aggregate
net book value of US$1,969,000 (2006: US$25,644,000) and
another US$7,000,000 current portion long term loan secured by
land use right with a net book value of US$586,000
(2006:US$561,000).

2007 2006
Us$’000 US$'000
FTXRr TET
34,415 26,000

BB B iER B E 2,800,000 7T
IAEFBREFME1,969,000E T
(2006 : 25,644,000 7T) K H# 28 &
RIERBEER - SHIRAERD
BN HAEE 4> 7,000,0003 7T BIl LA BR B %
{E586,000% 7T (2006 : 561,000
7T) B R AR o
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At 1 January 2006

Repurchase of shares

At 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2007

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 10 billion shares
(2006: 10 billion shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per share (2006:

HK$0.1 per share).

Details of the Group’s Equity Incentive Plan and Share Options

Scheme are set out in Note 27.

153 CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED

Shares issued under Equity Incentive Plan

Shares issued under Equity Incentive Plan

Shares issued under Share Option Scheme

24. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

24, DB AR

Number of shares Amount

B&oEE IE

‘000 US$'000

T R% FETT

R-ZTTF—H—H 2,677,534 34,327
RIRAR D 22 BT B BT TR A (D 51,965 667
fEEAR D (3,655) (47)
RZZEEF+-_A=1+—8H 2,725,844 34,947
BB BT 211 TR (D 13,297 170
RIR BT BB TRIRR D 2,150 28
R_E2E+F+-_A=+—H 2,741,291 35,145

EHWMEFAERLA

TR R N ZEERHEE B
10,000,000,0008% (ZZ T X F -
10,000,000,0008%) ' EEEEALAE
8018 (Z2ERF : K015

)

AR B Rt BB R 8 K BB A Rt
SIS FE27 -



25. LONG TERM PAYABLE

25.

The Group entered into an agreement to acquire certain machinery

and equipment and technical know-how related to the
manufacturing of wafers in 2006. At the balance sheet date, the

amounts payable are as follows:

Gross long-term payable -
minimum payments:

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

After five years

Future finance charges on
long-term payable

Present value of long-term payable

The present value of long-term
payable is as follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

After five years

Less: Amount due to settlement
within 12 months (included in
creditors and accrued charges)

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

REBENRBE - SEMK
—F2ZR

E_EFLF (BHEEEMF)
HELAE

R HARE (SR R SR B FE AR

RHENFRE

RABMRORENT :

—FLAR
F_EFLF (BREEMF)
AFENUE

Ao AR 12 A NEER
FIB (Bt AN
R ETER)

\\\\
3

x
=
N
=
=
Jn

BEERFIR

The present values are based on cash flows discounted using a

rate of 5.85%. (2006:5.85%)
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REEN IR

AEECDFY—DOR_ZZERFE
EETARRERENKESRRE
MEMABAOHE - REER - &
MEERRMT :

2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
SEE Tt
1,206 967
5,106 4,777
5,595 6,434
11,907 12,178
(2,698) (3,046)
9,209 9,132
742 644
3,707 3,015
4,760 5,473
9,209 9,132
(742) (644)
8,467 8,488

BB RIS S 7B IR5.85% (=
TEAF585%) BEM AL EHE
HE -

RE BB HRMEE
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION

REMBHERH

At 1 January 2006
Credited (charged) to
consolidated income

statement for the year

At 31 December 2006

Exchange differences

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credited to consolidated

income statement for the year

At 31 December 2007

At balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of
US$19,107,000 (2006: US$9,469,000) available for offset against

future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

R_FEFEANF—H—H
RAFELERE
W R AETA
(40B%)

RZZFZERF+A=1+—H
I H A

RAFEELRE

IR AFTA

N-FELE+-A=+—H

of such losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
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EMUBTERA T

26. IE AR IH
NTAEAEERBEFECRERE
ERIEEREEE) :

Impairment
on assets Tax losses Total
EERE BiIEEE st
US$°000 US$’000 US$°000
= F=T F=xT
291 88 379
426 (88) 338
717 — 717
52 — 52
68 — 68
837 — 837

REER - AEEFHE19,107,000% 7T
(ZZT T/ F : 9,469,0003 7T) KK
BRBEBETEERIETN - A
AR s R A TR - B
BAEBRRARTERBEAE -



27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(a)

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution, adopted an “Equity Incentive Plan” (the
“Plan”) on 8 May 2004. Under the Plan the Company may
allocate the Company’s shares to full time employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and the directors (the
“participants”). The objective of the Plan is to share the pride
of ownership among the executives and employees of the
Group and to reward their performance and contribution. The

term of the Plan is ten years from the date of adoption.

Under the Plan, the total number of shares which may fall to
be issued must not exceed 15% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time. The initial total plan amount, as
approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by way of
ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.
Furthermore, the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued to any Selected Employee in any twelve (12) month
period pursuant to any Awards shall not exceed one (1) per

cent. of the total number of Shares in issue.

27. BARAD X A3 B ¥ A

(a)

—EZELFFEHRSE ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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AARRER-TENEFE A
NERBEBRER  HER

M (R f 22 B st &1 ([5H&E1)) -
RIEHE - AR BRI AARA A
REWBARNEZHEEBRE
=([28%F]) DEARBNRK
0 - A EEAK BT
ABREEUBRREOHDESE
R R - WEIHREFHRE R
HEL - St B RM B RS S
B+ -

BIEETE - ATEEHS T EITHRR
DEBTSEARRARTEE
BITRDEN15% © HlFaT 84
HELCRIN-_ZTTHEFERA
NBEBRLEAERIERT
7$246,900,000/% © k5 - R1E
EfTSREEN R E AT+ =(12)18 A
HEEBTERETEITTEM
KEFEENROHES  T1F
BEDEBETRODBENESZ
—(1)°
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Contd)

(a)

Equity Incentive Plan (Cont'd)

In general, the shares allocated under the Plan will vest in
equal portions over a period of four years commencing from
the date of the grant or in such other proportions as the
Remuneration Committee may otherwise specify at the time
of the allocation of shares at intervals of every twelve calendar
months to the participants. Shares allocated will only be
issued once they vest and formal applications from the
respective participants are received. An administration fee
of US$0.01 per share is payable by the participant upon
application. Such vested and applied for shares will be issued

to the participants as bonus shares.

No shares were allocated under the Plan in the year 2007.
The fair value of the shares granted under the Plan in 2006
determined using the binomial model were HK$0.30 (granted
in January 2006) and HK$0.33 (granted in May 2006). The
significant inputs into the model were share price at the grant
date of HK$0.38 (granted in January 2006) and HK$0.41
(granted in May 2006), exercise price of HK$0.078, expected
dividend pay out rate of 0%, annual risk-free interest rate for
shares vested 1, 2, 3 and 4 years after grant date are 1.08%,
1.38%, 1.69% and 1.99% respectively and volatility rate of
27.7%. The volatility is measured based on the volatility return

on Hang Seng Index for the past ten years.

EMUBTERA T

27. LA A7 XA B SR BN ()

(a)

KRB E & ()

BEMS - BEFTE SRR
% 8% H B R NEER
ZERMEXFMNEESER
125 Be R 16 7€ A L 51 &+ — (&
ABBE2EELT - EHEREN
B BEERZERZECEEE
AALTEZTREKRBABLRE
EMEXRFRA AT AR
17 2EERIR L B BN EN
BRO.OIZETMITHRER - Z
SEHEERRERFNRG
AR A AKX TLEE -

RZTTLFE - WERET
B BEMRRKRS - RZTZTN
F MR ZEXAEXEE R
EIFTR R MR FER0.30
BT (RZTETAF-AKL)
%033B T (M= "FHA
B - ZEXFMANEZEY
ﬁﬁ%maﬁmh{owﬁx
(RZZEEXNF—AERL) X
om%m<ﬁ_77A¢£H
B - 17#EE0.078% T - B
HRZENREE0% RAE T
AEjE1 - 2  SRAFEBMR
MHERRFENES BB
1.08% * 1.38% ~ 1.69% &
1.99% * KIEER27.7% ° &
BEIBBEAETFEEER
B 18 2 [0]
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Contd) 27. AR X4 M (2) .
e
(@) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont'd) (a) REEBRBTE (&) g
Details of the shares under the Plan are as follows: FFEIETHREFBOT : 2"?[
Qutstanding Qutstanding 1)
at1 January Allocated Exercised Cancelled ~at 31 December Exercise %
2007 during during the during the 2007 price =
HogELE the year year yer  HI3BLE (inHKS) Exercisable E
-B-B EMER  EMER  EMER  toAct-6 RE Gt il 2
k-] | AR fig i i | (Bz)  BHA AREALA $
000 000 000 000 000 %
i fr i fr i o)
&
Directors ] %
—Peter CHEN -RIF 230 = - - 2330 0.078 1 Qctober 2003 T May 2013 Z
Chengyu 53 5% S
+A-A fAtA &
— Robert LEE Nai* YA 1,665 - - - 1,660 0.078 1Qctober 2003 T May 2013 :(5
oEEcE 3cf %
1A-A e 5
—Evis DENG Maosong™ ~~ —HkiA" 1330 - 1330 - - 0078 10ctober 2003 7May 2013 -
i 3cf
+A-A RAtA
26,149 = 6,968 993 18,168 0078 1Qctober 2003 7 May 2013
s 3cf
+A-A fAtA
Managements and ERABRES 6,737 - 3629 599 2309 0078 2 January 2005 7 May 2013
employees St e
-f=trA LAtA
5632 - 1575 1513 2544 0078 2 January 2006 7 May 2013
. 3-cf
-A=H filiad:
2040 - 260 578 1202 0078 16 May 2006 7 May 2013
IEE 3-cf

ZAtAR filika

Total &y 45883 - 13,962 3683 28238
Exercisable at the

end of the year EETTERY B34
Weighted average g

rercise price (HKS) FBE(HKS) 0078 0078 0078 0078 0078
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Contd)

27. BABRAD 34T RV R ()

b
=
#
g (@) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont'd) (a) RMPEBTE (®)
= Qutstanding Outstanding
fﬁ Outstanding Outstanding
X at1 January Allocated Exercised Cancelled  at 31 December Exercise
g 2006 during the during the during the 2006 price
= HoEEAE year year year  A-EEAE (inHKS) Exercisable
p -A-R ERER ERER ERER t2A=t-A file®  Grantdate unil
- 4iEN # it B KR (&%)  &48 TkALR
-
§ 000 000 000 000 000
< Directors g
g — Peter CHEN BIF 4665 - 23% - 2330 0078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013
w Cheng:yu = i
a +A-A AR
(_3' — Robert LEE Nai* 35t 3332 - 1,667 - 1,665 0078 1 Qctober 2003 7May 2013
2 e = 5 e S
3 83 A
% — TSAI Nein-nan ** BRigss 2,665 = 133 - 1330 0078 1 October 2003 7May 2013
o o3%= 5k
@ +5-8 £A¢E
'5 52633 - 20998 5486 %149 0078 1 Qctober 2003 7 May 2013
= e e St
1h-H RALA
Managements and EEARREE 19,124 = 8,066 4321 6,737 0078 % January 2005 7 May 2013
employegs 55 5k
i ididd:
- 12300 6,668 - 5632 0078 2 January 2006 7 May 2013
ERE 5k
i 1AtA
- 15,599 108% 2663 2040 0078 16 May 2006 TMay 2013
I 5k
1AtA ididd:
Total iy 8419 21,699 51965 12470 45,883
Exercisable at the
end ofte year EETERE 18,034
Weighted average g
exercise price (HKS) EHE(HKS) 0078 0.078 0078 0078 0.078
BHaE

Note:

*

Mr. Robert LEE Naii resigned as an Executive Director and
President of the Company from 1 July 2007.

*k

Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song is appointed as an Executive
Director and the President of the Company from1 July 2007.

***  Mr. TSAl Nein-nan resigned as an Executive Director of the
Company from 1 September 2006.
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Contd)

(b)

Share Options Scheme

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution, adopted a “Share Option Scheme” (the
“Scheme”) on 27 May 2005. Under the Scheme, the Company
may issue options to the directors and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries and any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Scheme participants”). The objective of
the Scheme is to provide the Scheme participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage the Scheme participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The

term of the Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

The exercise price is determined by the Remuneration
Committee, a committee of the Board comprising two
independent non-executive Directors and a non-executive
Director as established by the Board, from time to time, at its
absolute discretion and notified to the participant in the offer

and shall not be less than the higher of :

— the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
qguotations sheet issued by The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited on the date of grant;

27. AR AR 343 B 3R BN ()

B ESTE

BARRNAIBRRAETBRAZE
AE  ARBAR=ZZTTHF
TAZ T+ ARMA—IEE
HEH B - RIBBRERE
RAR A MARRREMEA
ANESERES @ AREMAR
REIREMBARINEERE
- B SR e
ABEER HEBKE T
P EERH SEERH
([FHE28EE]) REBERE -
BRESESINENRZENEZ
HEARSWERRBNME
R - W ENET IR EE
NARRRBREREHEET
HREARNDFARERMDHE
1B - AR T 21 /Y5 B R AN
HE R REA+F -

TEEEBAESZE T/ B

ZES (HMBBIIFEHITE
ERERITESAR) TR
BATT NS EEHNRHE
ETEETSERUTSE
PHREE :

- RELBHEBEBHEXR
SHERARZEHMNA
&R TS B Rt Uk TH
B
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Contd)

(b)

Share Options Scheme

— the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five business

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

— the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Based on the approval of Remuneration Committee, the share
options allocated under the Scheme during the year will vest
in equal portions over a period of four years commencing
from the commencement of the “Vesting Date” as approved

by the Remuneration Committee.

Share options granted under the scheme in 28 May 2007
subject to one-year vesting period from the participant's
employment starting date as approved by Remuneration

Committee.

The fair value of the options granted during the year determined
using the binomial model were HK$0.094 (2006: HK$0.0414 ).
The significant inputs into the model were share price at the
grant date of HK$0.75 (2006: HK$0.36 ), expected dividend
paid out rate of 0% (2006: 0%), annual risk-free interest rate
for the shares vested 1, 2, 3 and 4 years after the grant date
are 1.08%, 1.38%, 1.69% and 1.99% respectively and volatility
rate of 27.43% (2006: 27.7%). The volatility is measured based
on the volatility return on Hang Seng Index for the past ten

years.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

27. LA A7 XA B SR BN ()

(b) BMRAERTE (40

- EERBRGLBEHHAE
LEXEBERZMAR
RAFEHE B RK A
MR FHRTHE &

- —REORKELBHN
HEfE
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EOEMEESEFMEE S
R [ 558 B B ET &Y 0 F IR A
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RZETLFREAZ+/\H BE
BRI EREIRNA
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BHIRE SN —FHREY -
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NEXNEEH0.004E T (ZTEN
F:0.041487T) - ZBENEKAMNE
ZEREEL AHNRE. 75T
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27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Cont'd) 27. AR A0 AT RV RN (@) i
e
(b) Share Options Scheme (Cont'd) (b) BER#ESSE (B g
Movement in the number of share options outstanding and mARBEMNERESERIEHA i
related exercise price are as follows: TEENESHAT ®
At1 January Cancelled At 31 December E
2007 Granted during  Exercised during during 2007 Exercise price Exercisable %
HoBEtE the year the year theyer  W-EELE (in HKS) Grant date unti E
-B-A  CHERRE CRERGE  CREAEE rIRST-R GRE(Bn) RUR fiRALA 7
-
000 000 000 000 g
Managements and ERABR g
employees [E8 21,291 = 2150 800 18,341 036 8 Septemoer 2006 26 May 2014 w
ITEANE CEE @
BR=FAR 8
= 1987 - 40 1,967 075 28 May 2007 26May 2014 g
Z5RKE 5-[F o
RAZtNA il 0
I
'_
Total iy 21,291 1987 2150 1200 19,928 ,Q
[7p]
L'I_J
Breciseble et e TRFEE S
end of the year 533
Weighted average MERGHEE
exercise price (HKS) (&7) 0% 075 0% 049 039
Granted Exercised At31 Exercise
At1 January during the during the Cancelled December price Exercisable
2006 year year during the 2006 (in HKS) Grant date unil
H-BEAE yer  RoEEAE ik i
-f-B  BHEARE  BHEAGR  SREAEE  toRST-R (Bn) R ALER
000 000 000 000
i T i T
Managements and EEARR
employees &8 - 2.1 - - 2191 03 8 September 2006 26 May 2014
& T N 3
il
Total iy = 2191 = - 191
Bxercisable at he AREEAE
end of the year 1673
Weighted average METHRE
exercise price (HKS) (&) - 036 - - 03

—ZZT L FEFEERS  ANNUAL REPORT 2007 162



REMBHRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

163

27. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Contd)

(b) Share Options Scheme (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recognised
the total expense of US$892,000 (2006: US$2,488,000)
relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions

in respect of the share options granted by the Company.

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Mainland China

The employees of the Group in the mainland China are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the mainland China. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit

schemes is to make the specific contributions.

Hong Kong

The Group participates a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established

under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance.

The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme,
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 (equivalent to approximately US$128)
per person per month which contribution is matched by the

employees.

At the balance sheet date, there was no significant amount of
forfeited contributions to reduce the contributions payable in the

future years.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED B # = ¥+ A R 2 7

27. DA 32 A HY SR M )

BRERE

HE_ZZLHE+-A=1—
HIEFE  AEESRARFR
) i IS e e o B AR R 4 B A
BRHDABERETHRFHEZ
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29.

30.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants of US$ 1,917,000 (2006: Nil) under non-current
liabilities are deferred income in relation to government grants
provided by the relevant government authorities for the purpose of
financing the purchases of machinery and facility equipment and
relevant expenses for new products. The amounts will be

recognised as income in accordance with the relevant accounting

policy.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had the following

commitments:

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of BBV  BEK

property, plant and equipment BRENEARRR
Authorised but not contracted for EHUEBRETA
Contracted for but not provided EHESEES

29. @&

AAFRDEEANEBNHESE
BEARELZERA A1,917,000F T (=
TERF - &) - TEEBBRATEM
Rt - UREERBRRERER
FREFNELNERRAIRERES -
FHeHEERBEAEASTRERR
RN o

30. EAREIE

REER  REBEHEA A TARE :

2007 2006
US$°000 US$'000
TR FTXT
336,507 51,835
89,815 49,714
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31. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee:

REMBHERH

31.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

After five years

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—FR
F_E2FLF (BREEMFEAR)
hFR

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals

are fixed for an average term of one to ten years.
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REHED

AEBERABRA :
REER  AKRERTAIHELE
MA EYE - ZFAER AT R
RSB EMHKB
2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
TER S==K
2,012 1,997
6,838 7,359
365 1,323
9,215 10,679
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2. BEALRS

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group had the REBEE_ZTETLF+_A=1+—H
following significant transactions with related parties. IEFERN AEBHEHBEALTHE

ARSMIT °

2007 2006
US$’000 US$'000
SRESTT FEx
Sales of goods to HEDmT
subsidiaries of CR Logic EHEBNNERR 18,433 15,412
Rental, utilities and other services paid to the BEFEIBEE N ENDFI A
subsidiaries of CR Logic PRASEBRAREMRBENER 14,752 14,771
Purchase from the subsidiaries of CR Logic BESEIIE GOl nEYNEIEd 69 34
Consultancy fee paid to a company controlled R—RARAREEEEEHR
by a director of the Company NAZERE R 197 385
The amount due from / to the subsidiaries of CR Logic as included i sE20 & 22 ATk MO FE MR FE 1+ 25
in Notes 20 & 22 are unsecured, interest-free and repayable with BB ARRBEDERR - £

the credit periods ranged from 0-60 days.

- BZARO0-60 XM EAHIAE

fiE  cm
c
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Key management compensation

REMBERRME

Short term employee benefits

Share-based payments

disclosed in Note 11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

EREB RN
VAR AR 2R E R eV (B

The remunerations of the Group’s key management personnel
include the directors of the Company only, which are determined

with reference to the terms of the remuneration committee, are

EMUBTERA T

2. BEALRE @

TEETEE R
2007 2006
Us$’000 US$'000
FTER FTET
791 671
90 321
881 992
AREBEREEAR (EEREART]

BE - RHENHE -



33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 are

33. B R RIEHR

R-ZTEE+E+=-_A=+—H ' &

as follows: RNAEIMBARIMNFBHT
Issued and Proportion
fully paid of ownership
share capital / interest held
registered by the Company Principal activities
Place of incorporation / capital A72A7 and place of
establishment BRTR FiE# operation
Name of subsidiary SR, BrRA/ BiEfR IEEKR
HEAREE bk HEfER BOt £ELEM
Directly Indirectly
B il
Advanced British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 Investment holding
Microelectronics Limited RERIHS LRk 1= in BVI
EENETFERAR RERR  REELES
CSMC Manufacturing British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$2 100 Trade and investment
Co., Ltd. KBRS TRk 2ET holding in Hong Kong
TEFEREEBR AT BERRARR B8
CSMC Technologies Mainland China US$87,436,849 100 Manufacture and sale
Fab1 Co., Ltd.* B AR 87,436,849 T of integrated circuit
mIGER LS and related products
FERERAA in PRC
SERHEEK
BRRABER P
Qualibest Enterprises British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 Investment holding
Limited RBRUES a1 ET in BVI
EmEXER AT REER  REELEHS
CSMC Technologies Mainland China US$50,000,000 100 Manufacture and sale
Fab2 Co., Ltd.* el 50,000,000 7T of integrated circuit
mER L and related products
HEBER AR in PRC

—EZELFFEEIRE  ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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REBMBHRMEE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Issued and
fully paid

share capital /

33. B AR E R @

Proportion
of ownership

interest held

EE LENRBRAR!

2 registered by the Company Principal activities
é Place of incorporation / capital A7 and place of
E establishment BRTR Fi#$%E#% operation
g Name of subsidiary B AT BRRA/ BEER TEEBR
%’ HEAFEHE EARTEY HRER Eolt HEME
.<D_E Dweot[y Ind|reotlg
§ B il
&
= Rightbest Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 — Investment holding in BVI
E BHEXBRAA RERUHE BERET REER - RBRZHS
g CSMC Technologies Mainland China US$18,800,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
- Fab3 Co., Ltd.* B 18,800,000 7T integrated circuit and
IRER LEER related products in PRC
BRAR BUE RHERM
BRREEER - TH
Good Reach Enerprises British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$50,000 100 — Investment holding in BVI
Limited * RERUHE LM% 50,000 7T REER - RBRZHS
CSMC Technologies British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$50,000 100 — Investment holding in BVI
Corporation * RBEZHE A% 50,000 ET REER  EBEZHS

RN-EZE+E+-_A=+—HAR*E
AERRRE BMERBARAEEW
BIIEINNBEBES

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at 31

December 2007 or at any time during the year.

*

Wholly Foreign Owned enterprise * INEEE R

* Newly incorporated in 2007 # R-ZBEELFHAMA L
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34.

35.

CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, a subsidiary has provided corporate guarantees
to a bank for the down payment of mortgage loans of its employees
amounting to approximately US$481,000 (2006: US$515,000). The
management anticipates that no material liabilities will arise from
the above guarantees.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Amalgamation of Semiconductor Business with CR Logic

On 4 December 2007, CR Logic and the Company jointly
announced a proposal which would result in the amalgamation of
both companies’ semiconductor businesses under the Group. The
Group will acquire the semiconductor businesses of CR Logic,
being all its semiconductor operations other than China Resources
Semiconductor Company Limited which operates a 4-inch fab in
Tai Po, Hong Kong, by issue of consideration shares at an
aggregate issue price equal to approximately HK$1,448.9 million,
representing the net asset value of the companies being acquired
based on the management accounts of such companies as at 30
June 2007 net of any dividend payable. It is also proposed that
existing option holders of CR Logic will be offered shares in the

Company in consideration for the cancellation of their share options.

On 13 February 2008, ordinary resolutions were duly passed at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company in relation to (i)
the acquisition of the semiconductor businesses from CR Logic
by the Company; (ii) the continuing connected transaction arising
out of such acquisition; and (iii) the allotment of CSMC shares to
certain directors of the Company or such other connected persons
who are holders of share options granted by CR Logic in respect
of cancellation of their share options, and a special resolution was
also duly passed at the same meeting in relation to the change of
name of the Company.

On 5 March 2008, 3,153,640,010 shares of the Company were
issued as consideration for the aforementioned amalgamation
proposal and option cancellation.

34.
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35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont'd)

Joint Venture with CR Holdings

On 19 March 2008, the Company has entered into an agreement
for the formation of a joint venture with CR Holdings under which
the Company will participate in the joint venture for the operation
of the 8 inch wafer fabrication line by holding an indirect 19%
shareholding in the joint venture company. The balance of 81%
interest will be held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Holdings.
The total commitment under this joint venture will be
US$500,000,000 of which the Company'’s total commitment will be
US$95,000,000 and the balance of US$405,000,000 will be borne
by CR Holdings. The joint venture will then acquire from the
Company its entire interest in Qualibest Enterprises Limited, a
wholly-owned indirect subsidiary, which has been valued at
approximately US$58,440,000, being its unaudited net asset value
as at 29 February 2008 adjusted for the market value of a site in
the Wuxi Hi-Tech Development Zone plus the shareholder’s loans
of US$58,700,000 up to 29 February 2008. The joint venture will
also acquire from CR Holdings its equity interest in China Fast
Limited, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of CR Holdings, at
nominal value of US$1 and the shareholder’s loan of
US$200,000,000 up to 29 February 2008 at face value. The Group
will also enter into a services agreement with the joint venture to
provide sales, marketing, purchasing and a variety of other
technical and administrative support services for the 8 inch wafer
operation upon completion of the joint venture agreement. The joint
venture agreement and the services agreement are conditional
upon the approval of independent shareholders of the Company

to be concerned.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # E & F & IR 2 &
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Shareholders can obtain copies of Annual Report by writing to:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1806-1807

18th Floor,

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong
If you are not a shareholder, please write to:

China Resources Microelectronics Limited

(formerly named as CSMC Technologies Corporation)
14 Liangxi Road

Wuxi, Jiangsu

214061, China

Attn: IR Department

This annual report is also available online at

http://www.csmc.com.cn.

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES
Our enquiry hotline is operational during normal office hours:

Telephone: +86-510-88118089
Facsimile: +86-510-85877352

Email: ir@csmc.com.cn
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